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Chairman’s Statement 3 i # 3

On behalf of the Board of directors, I present the
annual report of Winfoong International
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) for the year ended

31 December 2010.
[

FINANCIAL RESULTS
For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group recorded

consolidated loss attributable to shareholders of approximately
HK$19.5 million.

DIVIDENDS

No interim dividend was paid and the directors do not recommend
the payment of a final dividend.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS,
REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND FUTURE
PROSPECTS

The Group has completed the disposal of the Group's entire
equity interest in Goldease Investments Limited (“Goldease”)
and the amount owed by the subsidiaries of Goldease to the
Group to Hong Fok Corporation Limited for a cash consideration
of approximately HK$56.4 million in January 2010. A gain of
approximately HK$12.5 million was resulted from the disposal.
The proceeds have been applied to repay a revolving loan of the
Group.

During the year, the Group continued to engage in property
related business and provision of horticultural services. The
increase in turnover was mainly due to the revenue from the sale
of the Group's development properties at 38 Conduit Road (the
“"Development”) recognised in the year.

The Development was completed in November 2010. Revenue
from the sale of properties of approximately HK$373.2 million
was recognized in the current year. Gross profits contributed
by the sale of these properties was approximately HK55.2
million. In relation to the sales of certain units, there were issues
arisen between the purchasers of these units and the Group.
The Group has in January 2011 offered arrangements to the
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Chairman’s Statement 3 i $#t 3

affected purchasers to address the issues. In connection with the
arrangements, the Group has to pay an amount of approximately
HK$279.4 million, out of which approximately HK$252.6 million
has come from the purchase monies previously received by the
Group from the initial sales of the affected units. The expenses
incurred for the settlement arrangements have been charged
to the profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2010. The
Group's net loss for the year of approximately HK$19.5 million was
mainly attributable to these expenses.

The changes in segment revenue, results and assets were
mainly due to the disposal of Goldease and its subsidiaries and
completion of the Development in the year.

The Company remains confident in the Hong Kong property
market, the prestigious location and the superior quality of the
Development.

The net asset value of the Group per share as at 31 December
2010 was approximately HK$0.15 (2009: HK$0.16) based on the
2,631,652,084 (2009: 2,631,652,084) shares issued.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

All the Group's funding and treasury activities are centrally
managed and controlled at the corporate level. There is no
significant change in respect of treasury and financing policies
from the information disclosed in the Group's latest annual report.
The Group's monetary assets and liabilities are denominated and
the Group conducts its business transactions principally in Hong
Kong dollars. The exchange rate risk of the Group is not considered
significant, no financial instruments for hedging purpose are
employed.

4 Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7

279,400,000 JT + E & 49252,600,000 %
TREZVNEEZFZEEN MBI EEXR
B ZERBLHEENBRCREE-Z
—ZEF+ A=+ —BLEFEZEIERT
X o AEEFANFEIEL 19,500,000 7T )
TEARZEERN -

DEE EEREENREHNETERE
RAREE HE Goldease & E M B AT R FEAK
FEIEE o

RRBHBAMEDS  HHEBEEZEBBQ
ERFBRENABED -

iR ¥ 52,631,662,0840%( = T T N, F:
2,631,652,084 %) BTG GHE - RNEE
MN-E—TFE+-A=+—HZEREEF
BAR/ONSET(ZEZNEF : 0.16/87T) °

U B e < e WA e O
AEBEMAMEMM BRSO EREEEH
PREENZES - MERBERREAKNRA]
EHNFHRARBEZENLBERES - A
BXEABTERERMEERARZEE
BUMETEBRRS - NEBZIMNERBRK
BRATEAN A BEEREFACHTAY
oo



Chairman’s Statement 3 i # 3

The balance payments of approximately HK$501.8 million
received by the Group from the sale of units of the Development
were applied in the repayment of bank borrowings and, together
with the stakeholders’ monies released, were held as bank

deposits.

As at 31 December 2010, the outstanding bank loan amounted
approximately HK$0.4 million (2009: HK$146.2 million). This bank
facility was denominated in Hong Kong dollars, unsecured and
arranged on a floating rate basis. The year end gearing ratio based
on bank borrowings less pledged bank deposits to total equity was
0% (2009: 35%). The Group's working capital requirements are
funded by bank deposits.

The Company has provided a guarantee to a bank for issuing a
letter of indemnity to a third party to the extent of approximately
HK$134,000 (2009: HK$268,000).

The following is the maturity profile of the Group’s bank borrowing
as of 31 December 2010:

Within 1 year 100%

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

| take this opportunity to express my gratitude to my colleagues
on the Board and the staff members of the Group for their strong
support and valuable contribution.

Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 March 2011
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Corporate Governance Report 3% i %

Year ended 31 December 2010 # % - —F4E| - H =+—H IF ¥

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of directors of the Company is committed to raising
the standard of corporate governance within the Group in order
to enhance the transparency in disclosure of material information.
The Board strives to implement the best practices embodied in the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules where feasible and as far as

practicable.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions as set out in the Model Code
of the Listing Rules. Following specific enquiry by the Company,
all directors confirmed that they have complied with the required

standards as set out in the Model Code throughout the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board consists of eight members who have appropriate

corporate experience.

Of the eight directors, five are non-executive. Four of the non-
executive directors are deemed to be independent by definition of
the Listing Rules.

Guidelines are established which specify certain material transactions
that require the Board's approval which include mergers and

acquisitions, divestments and major capital expenditure.

The Board supervises the management of the business and affairs
of the Company and the Group. Apart from its statutory duties,
the Board reviews and approves the Company’s and the Group’s
strategic plans, key operational initiatives, major investments and
funding decisions, annual business plans, reviews the financial
performance of the Company and the Group and evaluates the

performance and compensation of senior management personnel.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Board has separate and independent access to management
and the company secretary. Management provides the Board with
reports of the Company'’s and the Group's performance, financial
position and prospects, and these are reviewed by the Board at
Board meeting. Directors may obtain independent professional
advice in furtherance of their duties at the Company’s and the
Group’s expense.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Under Code A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual. Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick is both the
chairman of the Board as well as the Group's chief executive
officer ("CEQ")/managing director. Given the size and that the
Company’s and the Group’s current business operations and
administration have been relatively stable and straightforward, the
Board is satisfied that one person is able to effectively discharge
the duties of both positions. However, going forward, the Board
will review from time to time the need to separate the roles of the
chairman and the CEO if the situation warrants it.

BOARD MEMBERSHIP

The Board does not have a nomination committee as the Board
has been relatively stable with low turnover in the past few years.
However, if the need arises, the Board as a whole, will decide on
the nomination and appointment of new directors.

Details of the directors’ qualifications, directorships and other
particulars are set out on page 27.

Under Code A.4.2, every director should be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. The Company's
Bye-law 87(1) states that the chairman of the Board and/or
the managing director of the Company shall not be subject to
retirement by rotation and shall not be counted in determining
the number of directors to retire in each year. In the opinion of
the Board, the continuity of leadership role of the chairman is
important for the stability of the Company and is considered
beneficial to the growth of the Company. The Board is of the view
that the chairman should not be subject to retirement by rotation
at the present time.
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BOARD MEMBERSHIP (CONTINUED)

Under Code A.4.1, non-executive directors should be appointed
for a specific term, subject to re-election. Non-executive directors
of the Company are not appointed for a specific term although
they are subject to retirement and rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting. Under the Company’s Bye-laws, except
for the chairman of the Board and/or the managing director of the
Company, each director is effectively appointed under a term of
not more than three years.

REMUNERATION POLICY

Employees (including directors) are remunerated according
to their performance and working experience with reference
to prevailing market conditions. On top of basic salaries,
discretionary bonus and share options may by granted to eligible
employee by reference to the individual's performance. In
addition, the Group also provides social security benefits to its
staff such as mandatory provident fund scheme in Hong Kong.

Under Code B.1, a remuneration committee should be established
with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly
with its authority and duties. A majority of the members of the
remuneration committee should be independent non-executive
directors.

The Board has not established a remuneration committee. The
Board conducts an informal assessment of the individual director’s
contribution. No director decides his or her own remuneration.
Details of directors’ remuneration for the year are set out in note
7 to the financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises four independent non-executive
directors. Two of the committee members have financial
management experience.

The audit committee has full access to and co-operation of
the management. The committee also has discretion to invite
any director or executive officer to attend its meetings and is
assured of adequate resources to enable it to discharge its
function properly. CCIF CPA Limited, the external auditors have
unrestricted access to the audit committee.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The audit committee meets periodically with management and the

auditors of the Company to discuss and review:

(@)  the annual and interim financial statements to shareholders

before submission to the Board for adoption;

(b)  the Company’s and Group’s accounting policies and system
of internal controls;

(c) the audit plan of the Company’s external and internal

auditors;

(d) the results of the external and internal auditors’ examination
and their evaluation of the Company’s and the Group's

internal control system;
(e)  the independence and objectivity of the external auditors;

(f)  the assistance given by the Company’s and the Group's
officers to the external and internal auditors; and

(@) interested person transactions.

Under Code C.3.3, the audit committee should have the duties
to be primary responsible for making recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditor, and any questions of

resignation or dismissal of that auditor.

The recommendation on the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration
of the external auditors, and any questions of resignation or
dismissal of that auditor of the Company is made by the Board to

the audit committee for approval.

BEHEZ AT (F)
BREEGHALAZERERREATH

BOTgE  UiHmkER:

(@) HARXEFERMAZBRABRAM
ZEE NP BEHRE

(b)) ARAREAEEZSHHEEAEE
RS

(c)  AREINE KA EPAZERED 2 T E -

@ SNERABEHDLEEERRES
HARRRAREZ NBBERRZ
S

(e) SMNERBRDZBIEREHRIE

(f) ARRERAEEEEABRIERRA
AR BRI ER M 2 15Bh ¢ 2

(@ FmALRH -

RIFTAIECI3MG BERLZBERIEAR
BRI - B RARISINIE R ERED - HEES
FEAZ BRED 2 #r B I B PR 16K e B AR R 2
BHESMBERc EAREREEgRMtE

B
=23

BERZE B NREINEZIED - $LEH
BEAZ BRED 2 #r B I SR R A2 AR BRI 2 B A
SR ARZEMREREZEZRIMERSE
R ERERE AL -

Annual Report 2010 —F—F4EER



Corporate Governance Report 3¢5 i &

Year ended 31 December 2010 # % - —F4E| - H =+—H IF ¥

ATTENDANCE RECORDS AT BOARD AND HEGTRRABRAGERNLE
BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS i
The Board holds meetings on a regular basis during the year to FRESETHRTEE  BRAAQFTRA

CEVISERE LS - EELEEER R
HREREERRSIAHOT -

review the Company’s and the Group’s operations and financial
results. Details of attendance of the directors at the Board

meetings and audit committee meetings are as follows.

Board Audit committee
EEg ENZEE
Number of Number of
meetings  Attendance meetings  Attendance
RS HERE BERH HERE
Executive directors BTES
Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick BT 5 5 2 N/A
(Chairman of the Board) (E528+R) TEA
Mr. Cheong Kim Pong BEBRE 5 2 2 N/A
TR
Mr. Cheong Sim Eng BRETE 5 5 2 N/A
T
Non-executive directors FBITES
Madam Lim Ghee w ERL 5 N/A 2 N/A
TEA TEA
Ms. Cheong Hooi Kheng ERELL 5 N/A 2 N/A
(alternate to Madam Lim Ghee) (MERLTZBEER) i TEMA
Independent non-executive directors BV FHTES
Mr. Lai Hing Chiu, Dominic RERTE 5 - 2 2
(Chairman of audit committee) (BRZECER)
Mr. Kan Fook Yee BRIt E 5 - 2 2
Mr. Chan Yee Hoi, Robert RS EE 5 - 2 2
Mr. Leung Wing Ning DXERE 5 - 2 2
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Corporate Governance Report 3% i %

Year ended 31 December 2010 # % - FE—F4EA - H=—+—H IF ¥

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December
2010, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group at the date and of the Group's results
and cash flows for the year then ended and are properly prepared
on the going concern basis in accordance with the statutory
requirements and accounting standards.

The statement of the auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Company is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on page
32.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
For the year ended 31 December 2010, the auditors of the

Company and its subsidiaries would receive approximately
HK$480,000 (2009: HK$445,000) for audit and audit related
services, HK$Nil (2009: HK$57,000) for tax services and
HK$77,000 (2009: HK$595,000) for other services.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Company’s system of

internal control.

To facilitate the effectiveness and efficiency of operations and
to ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations, the
Group emphasizes on the importance of a sound internal control
system which is also indispensable for mitigating the Group's risk
exposure. The Group’s system of internal control is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage and eliminate risks of failure

in operational systems and fulfillment of the business objectives.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The internal control system is reviewed on an ongoing basis by
the Board in order to make it practical and effective in providing
reasonable assurance in relation to protection of material assets
and identification of business risks. The Board is satisfied that,
based on information furnished to it and on its own observations,

the present internal controls of the Group are satisfactory.

The Group is committed to the identification, monitoring and
management of risks associated with its business activities and
has implemented a practical and effective control system which
includes a defined management structure with limits of authority,
a sound cash management system and periodic review of the

Group's performance by the Audit Committee and the Board.

The Board has conducted review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control and is of the view that the system
of internal control adopted for the year ended 31 December
2010 is sound and is effective to safeguard the interests of the

shareholders’ investment and the Company’s assets.
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The directors herein present their annual report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company consists of investment
holding. Details of the principal activities of the principal

subsidiaries are set out in note 14 the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results and cash flows of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2010 and the state of affairs of the Company and the
Group at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages
35 to 150.

DIVIDENDS

No interim dividend was paid and the directors do not recommend

the payment of a final dividend.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and minority
interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set out

below.
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RESULTS B3
Year ended 31 December
BE+-B=t-HLEE
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
“2-2F —TTNEF ZFTN\F TR —TEAF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TET FET FET FET FET
Turnover EEE 376,498 35,667 48,533 29,339 26,169
(Loss)/profit before taxation BBiAn (B518) /& H (19,496) 85,814 34290 (311,249) 154,587
Income tax (expense)/credit FisH () /B% - (144) 5,505 (1,021) (4,055)
(Loss)/profit for the year EE(ER)/&F) (19,496) 85,670 39,795 (312,270) 150,532
Attributable to: i3
Equity shareholders of KARERFEA
the Company (19,496) 85,670 39,795 (312,270) 150,532
Non-controlling interests R - - - - -
(19,496) 85,670 39795 (312,270) 150,532
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS BE  BERFERER
As at 31 December
R+=ZB=+-H
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
“g-%F —FTTNE T\ CIFELE CIEAE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR FEr FET FEr FEr
Total assets BEE 753,688 717,697 460,849 449,979 2,641,002
Total liabilities BeE (361,409)  (297,636)  (141,065)  (169,330)  (756,712)
392,279 420,061 319,784 280,649 1,884,290
Equity attributable to equity ARTEREEA
shareholders of the Company Bl R 392,279 420,061 319,784 280,649 1,884,290
Non-controlling interests JER R - - - - -
392,279 420,061 319,784 280,649 1,884,290
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FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in the fixed assets of the Group are set out
in note 13 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year, together with the reasons therefor, are set out in note 23 to

the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing

shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 23 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31st December 2010, the Company's reserves available for
distribution calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) amounted to
approximately HK$140,829,000 (2009: HK$142,670,000).

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
approximately HK$103,000 (2009: Nil).

Dl i ¢
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest
customers accounted for less than 30% (2009: accounted for

86 %) of the total sales for the year.

Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for
94% (2009: accounted for 86%) of the total purchases for the
year and purchases from the largest supplier included therein
amounted to 79% (2009: 54%).

As far as the directors are aware, neither the directors, their
associates, nor those shareholders which to the knowledge of the
directors own more than 5% of the Company's share capital had
any interest in the five largest suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of

this report were:—

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:-
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick
Cheong Kim Pong

Cheong Sim Eng

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:-
Kan Fook Yee

Lai Hing Chiu, Dominic

Chan Yee Hoi, Robert

Leung Wing Ning

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR:-
Lim Ghee
Cheong Hooi Kheng (alternate to Madam Lim Ghee)
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DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

In accordance with bye-law 87 of the Company’s bye-laws, Mr.
Cheong Sim Eng, Madam Lim Ghee and Mr. Lai Hing Chiu,
Dominic will retire. Mr. Cheong Sim Eng, being eligible, will
offer himself for re-election as executive director, Mr. Lai Hing
Chiu, Dominic and Madam Lim Ghee will not offer themselves
for election as independent non-executive director and non-
executive director respectively, at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. Accordingly, Ms. Cheong Hooi Kheng will cease to be an
alternate director to Madam Lim Ghee at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. It is proposed that Ms. Cheong Hooi Kheng
will be appointed as an executive director of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considered all of
them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without

payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

#A (4
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BRRBFAEG LBRETRBIIFNTES
FFEMITES - ik - EFW L ERANHE
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

At 31 December 2010, the interests and short positions of
directors and chief executive in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations as
required to be disclosed under and within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") were as

follows:—

(I) LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY:—

A B
RZE-—ZF+_A=1+—H BEERTE
TBRABRARB REBZE QB Z BN - 48
Mk RESFT - HEREBEES KRB ED
(TRBHLBEED DE XV B2RERIRI
BYWBEEGMRRIOT & —

() AL F By B A BBy 2 W AT 2 —

Nature of Number of
Name of directors interest ordinary shares held Percentage
EEp ERME g EREE Aok
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick &z Interest of spouse 3,736,700 0.14%
iR s (Note 1)
(BsE")
Cheong Hooi Kheng EEH Beneficial owner 2,200,000 0.08%
EnlEEA (Note 2)
(FftsE2)

Note:
(1) Madam Helen Zee Yee Ling, the spouse of Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan,
Patrick, was interested in 3,736,700 shares, and as a result, Mr.

Cheong is deemed to be interested in these shares.

(2) Ms. Cheong Hooi Kheng's directorship is alternate to Madam Lim
Ghee.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (CONTINUED) w2 HEAR (H)
(I) LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES OF AN ASSOCIATED (i) A—HBBAA—BHREEGRAN

CORPORATION - HONG FOK CORPORATION LIMITED ([HREE)ZBRBZ58

(“HFC”)

Number of shares

Name of directors Nature of interest of HFC held Percentage
EEHE e PR EEER OB A B
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick Beneficial owner 8,639,454 1.29%
Eiee BE=HBA
Interest of spouse 1,237,830 0.19%
[ p e e
Held by controlled 104,058,803 15.78%
corporation (Note 1)
FRZEGEERFE (MtzE1)
Other 134,537,600 20.40%
Hth (Note 2)
(Mtsr2)
Cheong Kim Pong Beneficial owner 2,829,178 0.43%
B EREAA
Interest of spouse 553,300 0.08%
[ p
Held by controlled 104,058,803 15.78%
corporation (Note 3)
FRXEGEERE (MI7E3)
Other 134,537,600 20.40%
HAtb (Note 4)
(MtsE4)
Cheong Sim Eng Beneficial owner 74,020,300 11.22%
§EER L E=MmAA
Interest of spouse 257,700 0.04%
AR s
Held by controlled 31,263,663 4.74%
corporation (Note b)
FRZEGEERE (ffg3E 5)
Other 134,537,600 20.40%
HAtb (Note 4)
(s 4)
Lim Ghee Other 134,537,600 20.40%
& Hth (Note 6)
(HMtsr6)
Cheong Hooi Kheng Beneficial owner 10,569,000 1.60%
eyl EREAA
Other 134,537,600 20.40%
HAtb (Note 7)
(M¥EE7)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (CONTINUED)
(I) LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES OF AN ASSOCIATED

CORPORATION - HFC (CONTINUED)

Notes:

As at 31 December 2010:

These shares of HFC represented: (i) 72,795,140 shares of HFC
(representing approximately 11.04% of the existing issued share
capital of HFC) held by P.C. Cheong Pte. Ltd., which was 99% owned
by Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick and 1% owned by Mr. Cheong Pin
Chuan, Patrick’s wife, Madam Helen Zee Yee Ling; (i) 25,116,863
shares of HFC (representing approximately 3.81% of the existing
issued share capital of HFC) held by Goodyear Realty Co. Pte. Ltd.,
which was 25% owned by Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick; and (iii)
6,146,800 shares of HFC (representing approximately 0.93% of the
existing issued share capital of HFC) held by Corporate Development
Limited, which was 25% owned by Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick.

Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick's wife, Madam Helen Zee Yee Ling
had 3,397,000 shares of Hong Fok Land International Limited (“HFL").
HFL, through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Hong Fok Land Holding
Limited, was interested in 20.4% of the existing issued share capital of
HFC, and HFC was interested in 40.38% of the existing share capital
of Hong Fok Land Holding Limited.

These shares of HFC represented: (i) 72,795,140 shares of HFC
(representing approximately 11.04% of the existing issued share
capital of HFC) held by K.P. Cheong Investments Pte. Ltd., which was
99% owned by Mr. Cheong Kim Pong and 1% owned by Mr. Cheong
Kim Pong'’s wife, Madam Margaret Choo; (ii) 25,116,863 shares of
HFC (representing approximately 3.81% of the existing issued share
capital of HFC) held by Goodyear Realty Co. Pte. Ltd., which was 25%
owned by Mr. Cheong Kim Pong; and (iii) 6,146,800 shares of HFC
(representing approximately 0.93% of the existing issued share capital
of HFC) held by Corporate Development Limited, which was 25%
owned by Mr. Cheong Kim Pong.

Each of Mr. Cheong Sim Eng and Mr. Cheong Kim Pong had interests
in the issued share capital of HFC, which in turn held 40.38% in
the existing issued share capital of Hong Fok Land Holding Limited,
and Hong Fok Land Holding Limited was interested in 20.4% of the
existing issued share capital of HFC.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (CONTINUED)
(I) LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES OF AN ASSOCIATED

CORPORATION - HFC (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

5. These shares of HFC represented: (i) 25,116,863 shares of HFC
(representing approximately 3.81% of the existing issued share capital
of HFC) held by Goodyear Realty Co. Pte. Ltd., which was 25% owned
by Mr. Cheong Sim Eng; and (ii) 6,146,800 shares of HFC (representing
approximately 0.93% of the existing issued share capital of HFC) held
by Corporate Development Limited, which was 25% owned by Mr.

Cheong Sim Eng.

6. Madam Lim Ghee was a director of Hong Fok Land Investment
Limited of which Hong Fok Land Holding Limited was a subsidiary,
and Hong Fok Land Holding Limited was interested in 20.4% of the

existing issued share capital of HFC.

7. Ms. Cheong Hooi Kheng had 2,000,000 shares of HFL. HFL, through
its wholly-owned subsidiary, Hong Fok Land Holding Limited, was
interested in 20.4% of the existing issued share capital of HFC; and
HFC was interested in 40.38% of the existing share capital of Hong
Fok Land Holding Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, none of the
directors and the chief executive of the Company were, under
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, taken to be interested
or deemed to have any other interests or short positions in
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations, that were required to be entered into the
register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO
or were required to be notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

w2 HEAR (H)
(i) A—HBEAFR—BREEIRBDZ
I8 (40)

BieE - (88

5. ZEBRBEXERMEER: (A
Goodyear Realty Co. Pte. Ltd. #HE
225,116,863 R % 18 F X R 5 (1575
BEEXRACEITRALI81%)
Hp @ 8 M A25% : K(ii)H
Corporate Development Limited ##&
26,146,800 RBRBEERMD (EBEE
E¥RBEEITRALN093%)  HFiE
BRERSTHEE 25% ©

6. ##F 22+ AHong Fok Land Investment
LimitedHf B 2 ®Hong Fok Land
Holding Limited 2% % + K& Hong Fok
Land Holding Limited WBEEXIRE
BEITIRA204% FHEBER ©

7. EEMZ AN F L 2,000,000 8%
7 HFLIZE R E 2 E W B A 7 Hong Fok
Land Holding Limited WBEE5H
BOBITRA204% FHAEZ - M
BB E S8 Hong Fok Land Holding
Limited BB A7 40.38% Az °

MREXFEREEN RZTZ—TF+=
=+—B BEEHFKHE 1H%x%mw
8HEl MEARNRZEEREEZITHA
B EERRIER A AR REBE AR 2R’
7 RGO RESP - BB A H MR
YKBMBR AR RIRIEES RS G
3&%%?%2%%%¢%ﬁ&@%%%
ERGBRAT (TERFT])EH ETHRE
Uimﬁ%btm“ﬂ%%ﬁﬁﬁ R 5
ERESTRIZBAG A AR LB AT -

2%
s
E
n
Hgé
1

iy

Annual Report 2010 —F—F4EER 21



Directors’ Report 3 3 € 3t 1

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted
on 15 April 2002 whereby the directors of the Company are
authorised, at their discretion, to invite employees of the Group,
including directors of any company in the Group, to take up options
at nil consideration to subscribe for shares of the Company. The
options vest from the date of grant and are then exercisable within
a period of not more than ten years. Each option gives the holder

the right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Apart from as disclosed under the sections headed “Directors’
interests” and "“Share option schemes” above, at no time during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Company’s directors, their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the

Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 27 to the financial statements, there
were no contracts of significance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest subsisted at the end of year or at any time
during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

On 16 November 2009, the Group entered into an agreement
with HFC for the Group to sell and HFC to purchase the
Group’s interest in Goldease Investments Limited at the cash
consideration of S$10,150,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$56,434,000). The transaction was completed on 25 January
2010. Further details of the transaction were disclosed in note

27(c)(i) to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING

BUSINESS

At 31 December 2010, interests of directors in competing

business of the Group were as follows:
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S
ES

LR Y SR 3 A

—E-FHEF-_A=1t—H EERNEX
BEKBF < XGTHEA 2 ST

Name of Nature of
Name of directors company competing business Nature of interest
Y NEER BREBME Ry
Cheong Kim Pong HFC Property-related business As a director and shareholder
B BREX ESE S REERRE
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick HFC Property-related business As a director and shareholder
HFL Property-related business As a director and the
HFL ELE e spouse of a shareholder
REZERRE 2B
Cheong Sim Eng HFC Property-related business As a director and shareholder
Cheong Hooi Kheng HFC Property-related business As a director and shareholder
EEH BREE EEEES) REZERRR
HFL Property-related business As a director and shareholder
HFL EYE B REERRR
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND EX-Y 'S Y BN PG £+

OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS
At 31 December 2010, the following persons (not being directors RZE-—ZF+-A=+—H"  TI AT

or chief executive of the Company) had an interest in the following (KRBEFHREZTHRABRIN RBER
long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company AR IR B 5 I A E 1401 55 336 16 2 33 7E P i
as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 B ERMATR SN AR T 2 B D sk i B AR

of the SFO. Mz BEPHEERER -
Capacity Number of shares held Percentage
Name of shareholder RRA®E #E FrsRnEE Aatt
HFC BEEX Held by controlled corporation 1,652,910,365 62.81%
BRI EERE (Note 1)
GEAD
First Strategy Investments Limited First Strategy Investments Limited Beneficial owner 628,746,775 23.89%
EREEA
HFL HFL Held by controlled corporation 628,746,775 23.89%
BB ERRE (Note 2)
(Fzt2)
Barragan Trading Corp. Barragan Trading Corp. Beneficial owner 285,312,566 10.84%
ERAEA
Praise Time Co Limited Praise Time Co Limited Beneficial owner 136,000,000 517%
ERAEA
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(1

HFC was deemed to have the same beneficial interests as its wholly owned
subsidiary, Hong Fok Corporation (H.K.) Limited (“"HFCHK"), did in the issued
share capital of the Company by virtue of HFC's interest in HFCHK. HFCHK
was deemed to have the same beneficial interests as its wholly owned
subsidiary, Hong Fok Enterprises Limited (“HFE"), did in the issued share
capital of the Company by virtue of HFCHK's interest in HFE. HFE was
deemed to have the same beneficial interests as its wholly owned subsidiary,
Hong Fok Corporation Limited (“HFC Cayman”), did in the issued share capital
of the Company by virtue of HFE's interest in HFC Cayman. HFC Cayman
was directly interested in 976,720,587 shares of the Company. In addition,
HFCHK was directly interested in 47,443,003 shares of the Company. HFCHK
beneficially owned approximately 40.38% of the issued share capital of
HFL and was deemed to have the same beneficial interests as HFL did in
628,746,775 shares of the Company.

HFL was deemed to have the same beneficial interests as its wholly owned
subsidiary, Hong Fok Land Asia Limited (“HFLA"), did in the share capital of
the Company by virtue of HFL's interests in HFLA. HFLA was deemed to have
the same beneficial interests as its wholly owned subsidiary,First Strategy
Investments Limited, did in the issued share capital of the Company by virtue

of HFLA's interest in First Strategy Investments Limited.

Save as disclosed above, no other person was recorded in the

register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as

having an interest or short position in the shares and underlying

shares of the Company as at 31 December 2010.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or

redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There was no significant event subsequent to 31 December 2010.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed amount of public float during the year
and up to the date of this report as required under the Listing
Rules.

AUDITORS

CCIF CPA Limited retire and a resolution for their reappointment
as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 March 2011

26 Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7

N~ oA R Ml A A )b 2R

HE S ERERIARR EHES

Y H®REE
R-ZZE—ZTE+-_A=1+—0 HEERE
BEHBEHE -

AR E B
READFT ARG 2 ER - REEEAH
M AATRFARBEARSE B PR
EFRBIRE 2 ARFHREAT -

123
REERHTESHMERATVERER - £
ARy REBEAR IS RAE -
B B AA A AR -

REE=S
TR

T8 ZET——F=A++tH



Directors’ and Senior Management’s Biographies %3¢ & i S 45 B\ B i /¢

DIRECTORS
Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick, aged 61, is the chairman and

managing director of the Company. Mr. Cheong is a member of
the Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He joined the
Group in 1991 and was appointed a director of the Company in
1996. He has over 38 years' experience in property development.
He is a director of the Company’s substantial shareholder, Hong
Fok Corporation Limited (“"HFC").

Mr. Cheong Kim Pong, aged 68, is an executive director of the
Company. Mr. Cheong attended Civil Engineering at Technical
College in Austria. He joined the Group in 1991 and was
appointed a director of the Company in 1996. He has over 47
years' experience in construction management and real estate
development. He is a director of the Company’s substantial
shareholder, HFC.

Mr. Cheong Sim Eng, aged 50, is an executive director of the
Company. Mr. Cheong graduated from the Chaminade University
of Honolulu with a Bachelor of Arts degree. He joined the Group
in 1991 and was appointed a director of the Company in 1996. He
has over 25 years' experience in the construction industry. He is a

director of the Company’s substantial shareholder, HFC.

Mr. Kan Fook Yee, SBS, aged 74, is an independent non-executive
director and a member of the audit committee of the Company. He
is a barrister at law, a Fellow Member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors as well as a Fellow Member of the Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators. He was appointed an independent non-
executive director of the Company in 1998. In addition, Mr. Kan
is an adviser to the Heung Yee Kuk, a statutory advisory body
established under the Heung Yee Kuk Ordinance (Chapter 1097
of the Laws of Hong Kong). He is an independent non-executive
director of Synergis Holdings Limited, the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Lai Hing Chiu, Dominic, aged 63, is an independent non-
executive director and a member of the audit committee of the
Company. He is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong and has also
been admitted as a solicitor in England, Australia and Singapore.
He joined the Group in 1994 and was appointed an independent
non-executive director of the Company in 1996. He has over 38
years' experience as a solicitor. Mr. Lai is an independent non-
executive director of NWS Holdings Limited, Midas International
Holdings Limited and Oriental Press Group Limited, the shares of
which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chan Yee Hoi, Robert, aged 61, is an independent non-
executive director and a member of the audit committee of
the Company. He joined the Group and was appointed an
independent non-executive director of the Company in 2004.
He graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor
of Social Science degree. He has over 31 years’ experience
in corporate restructuring, corporate finance, capital markets,
direct investment and asset management. Mr. Chan held senior
positions in various American banks in Hong Kong and fund
management companies.

Mr. Leung Wing Ning, aged 63, is an independent non-executive
director and a member of the audit committee of the Company.
He joined the Group and was appointed an independent non-
executive director of the Company in 2009. He was educated
at Stanford University, California and New York University, New
York where he obtained a Bachelor of Science (Mechanical
Engineering) and an Master of Business Administration degree
respectively. He has over 30 years' experience in senior
management positions in international trades and in banking and
finance. He retired from Hang Seng Bank Limited in 2007. He is
an independent non-executive director of Wing On International
Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.

Madam Lim Ghee, aged 99, is a non-executive director of the
Company. She joined the Group in 1991 and was appointed a non-
executive director of the Company in 1996. Madam Lim Ghee
is the mother of Messrs. Cheong Kim Pong, Cheong Pin Chuan,
Patrick, Cheong Sim Eng, Ms. Cheong Hooi Kheng and Ms.
Cheong Puay Kheng.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Tsui Yeung Kun, Andrew, aged 55, is the director of the

property development division of the Group. Mr. Tsui graduated
from Christian Brothers College in the United States with a
Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting and Economics. He
joined the Group in 1995 and has over 6 years' experience in the
management of investment funds and 11 years’ experience in
equity research and stock broking activities in Hong Kong. Mr. Tsui
is the brother of Mrs. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick.

Mr. Cheong Tze Hong, Marc, aged 38, is the director of the
business development division of the Group. Mr. Cheong holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting from the University of
Southern California in the United States of America and a Master
of Business Administration degree from the University of Chicago
Graduate School of Business. He joined the Group in 2000 and
has over 3 years' experience in the merchant banking field and 10

years' experience in business development.

Mr. Cheong Tze Hian, Howard, aged 36, is the director of the
project management division of the Group. Mr. Cheong holds a
Bachelor of Science degree in Accounting from the University of
Southern California in the United States of America. He joined
the Group in 2004 and has over 3 years' experience in the private

equity field and 6 years' experience in project management.

Mr. Cheong Tze Hong, Marc and Cheong Tze Hian, Howard are the
sons of Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick.

Ms. Cheong Hooi Kheng, aged 58, is the senior manageress of
the property development division of the Group. Ms. Cheong
holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration
from the California State University, Hayward and a Master of
Business Administration degree from the Chaminade University
of Honolulu. She joined the Group in 1991 and has over 29 years’
experience in the construction industry. She is a director of the
Company’s substantial shareholder, HFC. Ms. Cheong was
appointed a non-executive director of the Company, alternate to
Madam Lim Ghee, in 2005.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Ms. Cheong Puay Kheng, aged 56, is the general manager of

the Group. Ms. Cheong graduated from Armstrong College of
Berkeley in the United States of America with a Bachelor of
Science degree. She joined the Group in 1993 and has over 25
years' experience in the planning, organising and control of office
administration and personnel management.

Mr. Cheong Aik Yen, Roy, aged 45, is the senior manager of
business promotion of the Group. Mr. Cheong graduated from
Western New England College in Massachusetts with a Bachelor
of Science degree in Mechanical Engineering. He joined the Group
in 2002 and has 3 years' experience in the merchant banking
field. He is the personal assistant to directors of the Company’s
substantial shareholder, HFC. Mr. Cheong is the son of Mr.
Cheong Kim Pong.

Ms. Cheong Hooi Kheng and Ms. Cheong Puay Kheng are sisters
of Messrs. Cheong Kim Pong, Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick and
Cheong Sim Eng.

Mr. Chan Yat Chun, Steven, aged 31, is the project manager of
the property development division of the group. Mr. Chan holds a
Bachelor Degree of Arts in Architectural Studies, Master Degree
of Architecture, and Master Degree of Urban Design from the
University of Hong Kong. Mr Chan is a Registered Architect in
Hong Kong, member of the Hong Kong Institute of Architects,
accredited BEAM Professional, and has 5 years’ experience in
construction industry and architectural practises. He has joined the

group in 2010.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Chan Yuen King, Paul, aged 34, was the project manager
of the property development division of the Group. Mr. Chan
holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Architectural Studies, Master
of Science degree in Construction Project Management, and a
Master Degree in Landscape Architecture from the University
of Hong Kong. He also holds a Bachelor of Law degree from the
Manchester Metropolitan University. Mr. Chan is a chartered
builder and has 11 years' experience in the construction industry
with 7 years’ experience in project management. He joined the
Group in 2003, left in March 2007, returned in October 2007, and
left in May 2010.

Mr. Tong Kwok Wai, Anthony, aged 38, was the senior quantity
surveyor of the Group. He is a Member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors, The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and a
Registered Professional Surveyor. He holds a Bachelor Degree
in Quantity Surveying from The City University of Hong Kong and
a Master Degree in Construction Project Management from the
University of Hong Kong. He joined the Group in 2008 and has over
13 years’' quantity surveying experience. Mr. Tong has worked in
construction cost consultant firm, contractor and developer. Mr.
Tong left the Group in March 2011.
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CCIF

CCIF CPA LIMITED

34/F The Lee Gardens
33 Hysan Avenue
Causeway Bay Hong Kong

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF WINFOONG INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Winfoong
International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “"Group”) set out on pages 35 to 150, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as
at 31 December 2010, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2010 and of the Group's loss and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

CCIF CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 17 March 2011

Yau Hok Hung
Practising Certificate Number P04911
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Consolidated Income Statement £35S 2E TR

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2010 2009
—E-EF —TENE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
[z TR T
Turnover = 3 3 376,498 35,667
Cost of sales HEAR (318,491) (30,428)
Gross profit E 58,007 5,239
Fair value gain on transfer of investment KR EMFEZHRES
properties to properties under development MmE 2 N FHERE 13 = 101,990
Other revenue Hiolzs 4 713 210
Other net loss HivBR%E 4 (827) (1,136)
Reversal of write-down of inventories FEMRREE 16(c) - 2,029
Operating and administrative expenses BERITHAR (89,806) (27,164)
(Loss)/profit from operations T (B8) /&7 (31,913) 81,168
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMNBARLz Y 28 12,461 4,940
Finance costs AR 5(a) (44) (294)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BB (B518) aA 5 (19,496) 85,814
Income tax expense G s 6(a) - (144)
(Loss)/profit for the year KE (B8)/ &7 (19,496) 85,670
Attributable to: MU BELE
Equity shareholders of the Company ADAEEREA 9 (19,496) 85,670
Non-controlling interests JEIER S - -
(Loss)/profit for the year Fi(F18)/&F (19,496) 85,670
(Loss)/earnings per share SR (BE) /B 10
Basic BA HK cents (0.74)#&fll  HK cents 3.37 1l
Diluted e HK cents (0.74) 1l HK cents 3.37 51l

The notes on pages 43 to 150 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income %5 A 2 1 32 %

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2010 2009
—E-EF —ETNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THT
(Loss)/profit for the year Fr(ER)EF . (19,4%) 85,670
Other comprehensive income/ FREMZENE (EE)
(loss) for the year
(after tax and reclassification (BB REF D EAER)
adjustments)
Exchange differences on translating MEFINERZEHZER -
foreign operations (net of nil tax): MERIIE 2 FEE ¢
— Exchange differences on —BEEINEB AR
translation of financial R ERER
statements of overseas
subsidiaries - 2,681
— Reclassification adjustments —FABHEZBINER
relating to foreign operations 2 EHDERAE
disposed of during the year (9,386) (4,891)
(9,386) (2,210)
Available-for-sale securities: net AR EES
movement in the fair value N ERE 2855
reserve (net of nil tax): I F5E
— Changes in fair value —FARNBERZ
recognised during the year NEEED) 270 -
- Reclassification adjustments —REEERRZ
for amounts transferred SR BTN ERE
to profit or loss — impairment —REEE (M:E4)
loss (note 4) 830 70
1,100 70
e (8,286) | (2,140)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FREME (EE), W1
for the year (27,782) 83,630
Attributable to: PATRELL
Equity shareholders of the RATERFFEA
Company (27,782) 83,630
Non-controlling interests RS - -
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FREME (FB) S 8E
for the year (27,782) 83,530

The notes on pages 43 to 150 form part of these financial FAIE 150 B 2 MBI EH Rz 2 —
statements. B o
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position £ 4 W # R

As at 31 December 2010 i ~FE—FFEf - H=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

As at 31 December

As at 31 December

Asat 1 January

2010 2009 2009
SE-BEECAST-R CERASTCA=T-R ZEEAE-A-H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
it TiEn Fibn FiEn FiEn FEn FEn
(restated) (restated)
(&31) (31)
Non-current assets FnEEE
Fixed assets EEdeE 13 2,624 3,561 359,876
Pledged bank deposits BERRIER 18(a) - 7 4
Other financial assets HtoRAE 15 5,050 4,780 1610
1,674 8348 361,490
Current assets hBERE
Inventories ks 16 281,490 487,398 94,531
Trade and other receivables B RAMRNER 17 24,265 123,502 2341
Tax recoverable AR 20) - - 1
Cash and cash equivalents BeRRe %R 18(a) 440,259 25,016 2,486
746,014 635,916 99,359
Assets of disposal group PEARELEL
classified as held for sale MEERIEE 19 - 73,433 -
746,014 709,349 99,359
Current liabilities hEEE
Trade and other payables EHREMEREE 2 360,968 150,168 9,937
Bank borrowings FITEH 21 4 146,182 924
Tax payables s 20) - - 504
361,409 296,350 11,365
Liahilties of disposal group NERIELE
classified as held for sale QIEERIBE 19 - 1,266 -
361,409 297,636 11,365
Net current assets RBEEFE 384,605 411713 87,994
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position & M BN ML

As at 31 December 2010 i ~F—FFEf - H=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

As at 31 December As at 31 December As at 1 January
2010 2009 2009
SB-BETCASt-R CTRASTCA=T-R ZEEAE-A-H
Note HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(i TEL TiEn TiEn TAL TEL TR

(restated) (restated)
(&5) (E31)

Total assets less current BEERRDEE

liabilities 392,279 420,061 449,484
Non-current liabilities FRBRE

Bank borrowings RITER Al = - 129617

Deferred tax iabiliies EiEHERE 2200) - - 8

- - 129,700

NET ASSETS BEFE 392,279 420,061 319,784
Capital and reserves RAR

Share capital jres 23(b) 131,582 131,582 119,620

Reserves B 260,697 288,479 200,164
Total equity attributable to RAFBEEEA

equity shareholders FERRER

of the Company 392,279 420,061 319,784
Non-controlling interests FERER - - -
TOTAL EQUITY R 392,279 420,061 319,784

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 17 EEeR _T——F=-At+tBiILEREE

March 2011. FE o

Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick Cheong Kim Pong

Director Director

= EF

The notes on pages 43 to 150 form part of these financial FA43E 150 B 2 MR S B MK 2 —

statements. 284y o
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Statement of Financial Position B #5IR L F&

As at 31 December 2010 i ~FE—FFEf - H=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2010 2009
—z-%% —FEhE
Note HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e FEm FEm AT TR

Non-current assets FRBERE
Investments in subsidiaries RBRRIZIRE 14 1 1
Other financial assets Hip e mEE 15 4,600 3,500
4,601 3,601
Current assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables BHREMEYKRER 17 274,973 261,409
Cash and cash equivalents Re MReFEY 18(a) 10 24,220
274,983 285,629
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B RAEMEMNEE 20 837 9,642
Net current assets MEEEFE 274,146 275,987
NET ASSETS EEFE 278,747 279,488
Capital and reserves R it
Share capital JRAR 23(b) 131,582 131,582
Reserves [ 147,165 147,906
TOTAL EQUITY MR 278,747 279,488

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 17 BEEgR T ——F= At EAERKE

March 2011. g o

Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick Cheong Kim Pong

Director Director

4 =

The notes on pages 43 to 150 form part of these financial FA3E 150 B 2RI EM BTz 2 —
statements. 5 o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 55 & sz B #

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LIj#TTHHE)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ARARERE ARILER
Capital
redemp- Fair Non-
Share Share tion  Exchange value  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total interests equity
kA FER
Rx  REE BEGEE EXRE ATERE  REE f Bn  GER
HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Thr TEr TER  TEr  TEr TR TEn  TEr TR
At 1 January 2009 RZZENE-A-B 119620 - 21 115% 260 188187 319784 - 319784
Profit for the year Efgh - - - - - 85,670 85,670 - 85,670
Other comprehensive EMERZE
{loss|/ income for the year (B8)/ iz - - - R0 70 - 2040 - 240
Total comprehensive EmzE
{loss}fincome for the year (BB)/ hxes - - - 20 70 85610 83530 - 8353
Shares issued upon fRET R
rights issue 11,962 4,785 - - - - 16,747 - 16,747
At 31 December 2009 KZEENE
ZA=T1-H 131,582 4,785 121 9,386 330 273857 420,061 - 40,061
At 1 January 2010 WZ2-%5-4-R 131,582 4,785 121 9,386 330 273857 420,061 - 420,061
Loss for the year EREiE - - - - - (1949  (19,49) - (19,496)
Other comprehensive EREMZE
(loss}fincome for the year (B8)/ & - - - (9386 1100 - (8286) - (8286)
Total comprehensive ERZE
(loss)fincome for the year (BR)/Waag - - - (9386) 1100 (19496  (27,782) - (782
At31 December 2010 RZZ-%F
TZA=+-A 131,582 4,785 121 - 1430 254361 392219 - 392219

The notes on pages 43 to 150 from part of the financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows £S5 B iR B3R

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2010 2009
—E-FTF —TTNF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
BteE FBT FAT
Operating activities KR
Cash generated from/(used in) operations A& &FrES, (FF) 2H4E  18(b) 490,500 (3,755)
Tax paid BRHIA
Hong Kong profits tax refunded BAEFEWRE - 1
Singapore income tax paid BTN ATIS - (318)
Net cash generated from/(used in) e RELY, (FH)
operating activities RneF®E 490,500  (4,072)
Investing activities REEE
Decreasef/(increase) in D (35 0) AYEE R
pledged bank deposits RITIHENR 7 (3)
Payment for purchase of available-for-sale ~ BEA Rt HER EH
unlisted debt securities (EE AN - (3,170)
Payment for purchase of fixed assets BABRTEE 2R (134) (7,280)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets & BT B EMSEIR 3 272
Dividend income from available-for-sale ~ AIftHH &R FrTEH
unlisted securities 2B BWA 304 -
Interest received BHFE 196 96
Net inflow/(outflow) of cash and cash HENBARMEREZ
equivalents in respect of ReERAEEEYD
disposal of subsidiaries A Crit) #5858 28 51,255 (25)
Net cash generated from/(used in) RETERIEE
investing activities (A 2RE T8 51,631 (10,110)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows £S5 H£iRER

(LU TTtHE)

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2010 2009
=225 —"TTNF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
BiteE FBT FAT
Financing activities RERE
Increase in amounts due to the AR EERRE
Company's substantial shareholders B Z 38 h0 2,407 717
Proceeds from rights issue HRFTISIE - 16,747
(Repayments of)/proceeds from HAREBEERIE 2
over-subscription under rights issue (&), P58 (7,468) 7,468
Proceeds from new bank loans REFERITERZ
PR 3A 180,340 54,195
Repayment of bank loans BEIFTER (305,741) (38,554)
Interest paid ERFLE (51) (287)
Net cash (used in)/generated from RYESEENFT (FA),EE
financing activities ZIREFE ~(130513) 40,286
Net increase in cash and RERREEEN
cash equivalents EANFRE 411,618 26,104
Cash and cash equivalents at the RENZRERES
beginning of the year ZEY 28,641 2,486
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EZR& )5/ & - 51
Cash and cash equivalents atthe end RERZBEERRE
of the year ZEY 18(a) 440,259 28,641

F43E 160 B Z MBI EMBRERZ —

27|
[=]

The notes on pages 43 to 150 form part of these financial

=S

statements. 5 e
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a)

b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. A summary of the significant accounting

policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group and the Company. Note 2 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from
initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting years reflected in these financial

statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2010 comprise the Company and

its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional

currency of the Company.

1. BEEEOE

a)

b)

BB
ZEVBHRERCRIETBU R
ERA(TFEHBHREEN]
oEeREEetm g ([F
BEREAE])EMZMAEE
RzBEMBREER  FE
SRPEA(THFEGERD Rk
2E) FEERARZEHRAR
BREREGH 2 BEREREM
B e ZEMBREANTCHEEA
BARHMERARER LHR
A2 ERIWBERE - TXH#IIAK
SERAZEIZEHABRRZM
2

o

EASHMASEEMBIAHAN
SERAR ARG A ERK
ARERM AL RENET2E
B SHREER - YIRERZS
HASEE@N TRV BRELE
BIF S| MERFIAE €T FEE 2
EETHEEMES - BRENAE
BISRERAN - BEER S H M
FE2-

S e A A o
BE_Z-ZTHF+-_A=t—H
TEENGEAMBRRBIEAR
REREM B LR ([ AE
@) -

RABBBmRIIAEBITINIE M
BRAMBRRBZINGRER
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets are stated at their fair value as

explained in the accounting policies set out below:

- investment property (see note 1(f));

- other buildings (see note 1(g)); and

- financial instruments classified as available-for-

sale securities (see note 1(e)).

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale
are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell (see note 1(u)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

b)

<)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the
financial statements and major sources of estimation

uncertainty are discussed in note 29.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity
so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing
control, potential voting rights that presently are

exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same
way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that

there is no evidence of impairment.

1. BEEEHEOR (8)

b)

)

S e A A (4

AEBEFERATEMGE RBHR
RIEHFHE - HEEFHAR 2 1&
FEREFLARER 2R
AN %R ERER W5
ERECEACHEZ Y4 IS
HARD - RURE B R R R HAR HE AR
BREAER] °

ERAE MRS LR ER
BELHRFAEEAARZER
[ B X 3 B 7 R K TN REE M
ZEBRBERRBREEAZENH
BT - MR 29 o

B g 2 ) e b I Al 2
MEARAREES ZEE -
EAKEEREEMHREER
RAME AL LR S AN 2555 -
AFEEHIBR o AT (H1E 5B
BB - BE BB AITE 2 7&

BEE-

RETE AR ZIRE B ZEH KA
HEEEHKIEAEHAREN
BWwEK - FEARFIREZHEHR
RXHEASERAR G MEE ZE
IARBHEWE - IRRELGEEH
BRRKEZEHME - KERAF
BRZEL 2 RERE B ITR
FRARB IR E 2 7 0E BB T AN
o EERORERETR 215
AN
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

<)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests (previously known as
“minority interests”) represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s

net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated income statement and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the

Company.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are

made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.
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1.

Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

<)

d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)
When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset
(see note 1(e)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or jointly
controlled entity .

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment losses (see note 1(i)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included in
a disposal group that is classified as held for sale) (see
note 1(u)).

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interest in the

acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the

acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a
bargain purchase.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

d)

e)

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating unit,
or groups of cash generating units, that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination and is

tested annually for impairment (see note 1(i)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill
is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on
disposal.

Other investments in debt and equity securities
The Group's and the Company’s policies for
investments in debt and equity securities, other than

investments in subsidiaries, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially
stated at fair value, which is their transaction price
unless fair value can be more reliably estimated
using valuation techniques whose variables include
only data from observable markets. Cost includes
attributable transaction costs, except where
indicated otherwise below. These investments are
subsequently accounted for as follows, depending on
their classification:

(i) Held-to-maturity debt securities

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the
Company have the positive ability and intention
to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-
maturity securities. Held-to-maturity securities
are stated in the statement of financial position at
amortised cost less impairment losses (see note
1().
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. BEEEHEOR (80)
(CONTINUED)
e) Other investments in debt and equity securities e) AU RIB A &N 2 b B
(continued) (%)
(i) Available-for-sale securities (i) AIHEHEFS

Other investments in securities, being those
held for non-trading purposes, are classified
as available-for-sale securities. At the end
of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value
reserve, except foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from changes in the amortised
cost of monetary items such as debt securities
which are recognised directly in profit or loss.
Dividend income from these investments is
recognised in profit or loss in accordance with
the policy set out in note 1(r)(vi) and, where
these investments are interest-bearing, interest
calculated using the effective interest method
is recognised in profit or loss in accordance
with the policy set out in note 1(r)(vii). When
these investments are derecognised or impaired
(see note 1(i)), the cumulative gain or loss is

reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

HihBHIEE (AR HEIEE
ERABRE)BERIM
FBH o NI EFRE
K DFERETAERE
2 ANEEEELEZREE
E%#Emzﬁw & P
RAFEREZES
REBY RE MR EKE
BanfEHE 2 #Hp RN
FEEZELKZ KBRS
ERERBERAER &
BEEZRB U AR M
) (vi) FTE 2 BRI 18
mERNER  MZERE
BEE  RERFEER
B2 BT BARMEE1(r)
(vii) a2 BUR MB & 5%
NHER - WRRERZE
&ﬁﬁ%uﬁ@(ﬁ%%
i) ERIREETRERE
ﬁ A2 Rt as sk Bk
ERENDBEEERER -

ZERER AN EEAEEEZRS
TE 7 BT AR AL E &
HINEZEREREI T BRR
wR -

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date
the Group commits to purchase/sell the investments

or they expire.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

f)

Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest (see
note 1(h)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a currently
undetermined future use and property that is being
contructed or developed for future use as investment

property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value,
unless they are still in the course of construction
or development at the end of the reporting period
and their fair value cannot be reliably determined
at that time. Any gain or loss arising from a change
in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of
an investment property is recognised in profit or
loss. Rental income from investment properties is

accounted for as described in note 1(r)(i).

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted
for as an investment property on a property-by-
property basis. Any such property interest which has
been classified as an investment property is accounted
for as if it were held under a finance lease (see note
1(h)), and the same accounting policies are applied
to that interest as are applied to other investment
properties leased under finance leases. Lease

payments are accounted for as described in note 1(h).
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2)

Other property, plant and equipment

The following properties held for own use are stated at
their revalued amount, being their fair value at the date
of the revaluation less any subsequent accumulated

depreciation:

- buildings held for own use which are situated
on leasehold land, where the fair value of the
building could be measured separately from the
fair value of the leasehold land at the inception of

the lease (see note 1(h)).

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
to ensure that the carrying amount of these assets
does not differ materially from that which would be
determined using fair values at the end of reporting

period.

The other items of property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses (see note 1(i)).

1. BEEEHEOR (8)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. BEEEEHEOR (8)
(CONTINUED)
g)  Other property, plant and equipment (continued) g) AL - B Bt ()
Changes arising on the revaluation of properties REGFEERMEEEZE
held for own use are generally dealt with in other —REHEMEEREANEE - I
comprehensive income and are accumulated RYEEGHEB I ERANE LR
separately in equity in property revaluation reserve. e EBFIIMERIAT -

The only exceptions are as follows:

-  when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be - WELEBHEL Z3HE
charged to profit or loss to the extent that it EEREAANNER  BEEHE
exceeds the amount held in the reserve in HREZERAIREHE
respect of that same asset immediately prior to EREBEANRECZ2ER
the revaluation; and kR

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be - WELEEHAESK 258
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a FFABEZERK - WUABE—
deficit on revaluation in respect of that same BEELNERBERRA
asset had previously been charged to profit or Sl BB ARTE -
loss.

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant BITHEZME  BEREH#EZ

and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct R BEEMEIRAR EEST

labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs AR M@ - 915 AR RE
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring NRBIE B A K IR1EIE B FTfE it
the site on which they are located, and an appropriate REFHILA - A REE L FIRE

proportion of production overheads and borrowing ftb A B A AN DB B AR (LB 5

costs (see note 1(1)). 1(1) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2)

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is transferred
from the property revaluation reserve to retained

profits and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives

as follows:

- Leasehold land classified as held under finance

leases is depreciated over the term of lease.

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over their estimated useful lives of

40 years.

- Furniture, equipment and other fixed assets are

depreciated over 5 years.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its

residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

1. BEEEHEOR (8)

2)

FefbP 3k - W3 B B Al (4)
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BFEL£ZER - AHEMEK
BFHEBA Y REASEIHE
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T A A LA B AVE M BE K
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(&) ARHEITE -
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ME LR BB ARG ER

o

s
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HIEF A AR 40 FHIME
IrE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

h)  Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as being held under finance leases. Leases
which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases, with the following

exceptions:

- property held under operating leases
that would otherwise meet the definition
of an investment property is classified
as investment property on a property-
by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if
held under a finance lease (see note 1(f));

and
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

h)  Leased assets (continued)

0

Classification of assets leased to the Group

(continued)

- land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value of
a building situated thereon at the inception
of the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease.
For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first
entered into by the Group, or taken over

from the previous lessee.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period

in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease term
except where the property is classified as an
investment property (see note 1(f)) or is held for

development for sale (see note 1(j)(ii)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

i) Impairment of assets

i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables
Investments in debt and equity securities and
other current and non-current receivables that
are stated at cost or amortised cost or are
classified as available-for-sale securities are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the

attention of the Group about one or more of the

following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default

or delinquency in interest or principal

payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment

that have an adverse effect on the debtor;

and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity

instrument below its cost.
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1.

Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

i)

Impairment of assets (continued)
Impairment of investments in debt and equity

securities and other receivables (continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss
is determined and recognised as follows:

For investments in subsidiaries, the
impairment loss is measured by comparing
the recoverable amount of the investment
with its carrying amount in accordance
with note 1(i)(ii). The impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount in accordance with
note 1(i)(ii).

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is made
collectively where financial assets carried
at amortised cost share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

i) Impairment of assets (continued)
i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity

securities and other receivables (continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the
asset's carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior

years.

- For available-for-sale securities, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised
in the fair value reserve is reclassified to
profit or loss. The amount of the cumulative
loss that is recognised in profit or loss is
the difference between the acquisition
cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that asset

previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or
loss in respect of available-for-sale equity
securities are not reversed through profit
or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair
value of such assets is recognised in other

comprehensive income.

58 Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7

1. BEEEHEOR (8)

i) WREWAE (B
i) RMEFERIR A
BRIl Y #KTH  (E
(#%)

ARERAOERE - R
EERBERD - M
BRER DA FEH R
ERRBERREE
EREMIE - RIR
EBEREEBRER
M - REEBEREE
TEEHEERE S
HBHEENEFE
A ERREERZ
BF

A EE S
5 DRAFEREG
THAZRNERS
EFOBREEER -
PR RIER 2 RET
ERESBRBBRAR
OB EERARIER
KEEH) EBRITRF
BZER  REER
AR B ENETRR
T HERHELEETE

A B IR AR E 5
MEBBRIENES
KRR - RITEE
BERERED - AR
HZEERFEZER
EIME R E M2 E R
PR o



Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. BEEEHEOR (8)
(CONTINUED)
i)  Impairment of assets (continued) ) AWML ()
i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity 1) FEETE R IR 75 5 14 2 7

securities and other receivables (continued)

Impairment losses in respect of available-
for-sale debt securities are reversed if the
subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in profit or

loss.

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade debtors directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that
debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in

profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICA]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. BEEEEHEOR (8)
(CONTINUED)
i)  Impairment of assets (continued) ) AWML ()
ii)  Impairment of other assets i) HbEEZWE

Internal and external sources of information are REBEGERERARERN
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to WES RN E R - AT E
identify indications that the following assets may THEERSELERAED
be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an R (BRI AT
impairment loss previously recognised no longer REBREBEEEL TNHT
exists or may have decreased: sk B AR

ME- BERZRB

- property, plant and equipment (other than

properties carried at revalued amounts); (REHBEINEZ
MERRSN)

- pre-paid interests in leasehold land DERKECEHRERT
classified as being held under an operating BEZHEE L BN
lease; and FE R

- goodwill. PEER o

If any such indication exists, the asset’s WMEFEAMNEBIR -

recoverable amount is estimated. In addition, for AlgdmtEEm A kE 2

goodwill, the recoverable amount is estimated ot BEmEmME

annually whether or not there is any indication of CHFHEFTATREESE -

impairment. AT E =R B AR E D

% o
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1.

Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #; % & —F4F A H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LIi#ICi]{H)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

i)

Impairment of assets (continued)

ii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e., a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwvill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or
group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs to sell, or value in use, if

determinable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

i) Impairment of assets (continued)

ii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

- Reversals of impairment losses
In respect of assets other than goodwill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill

is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which

the reversals are recognised.

i) Inventories

i)

Horticultural services
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and

net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the standard cost basis
(which approximates the average actual cost)
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and
condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated

costs necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #; % & —F4F A H =+—H IFF/¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

»

Inventories (continued)

0

ii)

Horticultural services (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as an expense
in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses
of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense

in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Property development

Inventories in respect of property development
activities are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost and net realisable values

are determined as follows:

- Property under development for sale

The cost of properties under development
for sale comprises specifically identified
cost, including the acquisition cost of land,
aggregate cost of development, materials
and supplies, wages and other direct
expenses, an appropriate proportion of
overheads and borrowing cost capitalised
(see note 1(t)). Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price less
estimated costs of completion and costs to

be incurred in selling the property.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

j) Inventories (continued)
ii)  Property development (continued)
- Completed property held for sale

In the case of completed properties
developed by the Group, cost is
determined by apportionment of the total
development costs for that development
project, attributable to the unsold
properties. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price less costs to
be incurred in selling the property. The
cost of completed properties held for sale
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

k) Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see
note 1(i)), except where the receivables are interest-
free loans made to related parties without any fixed
repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at

cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #; % & —F4F A H =+—H IFF/¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

m)

n)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest
method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities
measured in accordance with note 1(g)(i), trade and
other payables are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be

immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been

within three months of maturity at acquisition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
o) Employee benefits
i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions to

p)

defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at

their present values.

it)  Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when, and
only when, the Group demonstrably commits
itself to terminate employment or to provide
benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by
having a detailed formal plan which is without

realistic possibility of withdrawal.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous

years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #; % & —F4F A H =+—H IFF/¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

p)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from

unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in the
same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax
loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried
back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

p)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences,
the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it
is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse
in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred

tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is
reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that

sufficient taxable profits will be available.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #; % & —F4F A H =+—H IFF/¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. BEEEEHEOR (4)
(CONTINUED)
p)  Income tax (continued) p) DBl ()
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and BVERT 18 45 e N2 SE 0 18 45 64 LA
movements therein, are presented separately from &”‘CPZ“@WJXE a2 7D
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are T o ERELAT 25
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax SME ﬁﬁZIS’AETEJZZK%%ﬁ
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company NIRE A MIBEE TR EEE
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off ZIOEEER - NEWMIBEES G
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the HARHITIE B EEE - MIELER
following additional conditions are met: TEEE A BRI 18 B HE A
- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, - BMAHsHMEEERERE
the Company or the Group intends either to imE @ ARERAEEET
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and SILOFEAREE - A
settle the liability simultaneously; or KREREEREREE
1)
- inthe case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, - *f EXEBREERBEM
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same CMZEBEERBEMRE
taxation authority on either: EZFTT IR R—E

BHBERTRLL -

- the same taxable entity; or T8 Ty AR — B

EL V-7
- different taxable entities, which, in each - HIRANBEML B
future period in which significant amounts R —ERREAR -
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are BRI A& 2 IR
expected to be settled or recovered, intend HEEREENEE
to realise the current tax assets and settle PR EE S - &
the current tax liabilities on a net basis or B FRE R XNEBEAR
realise and settle simultaneously. HeBmEERER
REZ HIBAEESRA
REHERERER -
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1. BEEFHEOR (8)
(CONTINUED)
q) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent q) e MR - M RSk
liabilities £
i) Financial guarantees issued i) 2 ISR

Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e., the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms
of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee,
the fair value of the guarantee (being the
transaction price, unless the fair value can
otherwise be reliably estimated) is initially
recognised as deferred income within trade and
other payables. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee,
the consideration is recognised in accordance
with the Group's policies applicable to that
category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate expense
is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition

of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or
loss over the term of the guarantee as income
from financial guarantees issued. In addition,
provisions are recognised in accordance with
note 1(q)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the
Group under the guarantee, and (ii) the amount
of that claim on the Group is expected to exceed
the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee, that is, the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #; % & —F4F A H =+—H IFF/¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

q) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continued)

ii)

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities
of uncertain timing or amount when the Group
or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected

to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

r)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the

consideration received or receivable. Provided it is

probable that the economic benefits will flow to the

Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be

measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or

loss as follows:

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period in

which they are earned.

Sale of properties

When properties under development are
sold, income is recognised when the property
development is completed with the relevant
occupation permit issued by the Authorities
and the significant risks and rewards of the
properties are passed to the purchasers.
Payments received from purchasers prior to this
stage are recorded as forward sales deposits and

instalments received.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #; % & —F4F A H =+—H IFF/¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

r) Revenue recognition (continued)

iii)

vi)

vii)

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered
which is taken to be the point in time when
the customer has accepted the goods and the
related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes

and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Contract revenue
When the outcome of a construction contract

can be estimated reliably.

Management fee income
Management fee income is recognised at the
time when the services are rendered.

Dividends
- Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right

to receive payment is established.

- Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the

investment goes ex-dividend.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using

the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

s)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are

recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was

determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items, including goodwill arising
on consolidation of foreign operations acquired, are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in

equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or

loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #; % & —F4F A H =+—H IFF/¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

u)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs

are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or

sale are interrupted or complete.

Non-current assets held for sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified
as held for sale if it is highly probable that its carrying
amount will be recovered through a sale transaction
rather than through continuing use and the asset
(or disposal group) is available for sale in its present
condition. A disposal group is a group of assets to be
disposed of together as a group in a single transaction,
and liabilities directly associated with those assets that
will be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
loss of control of a subsidiary, all the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary are classified as held for
sale when the above criteria for classification as held
for sale are met, regardless of whether the Group will
retain a non-controlling interest in the subsidiary after
the sale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

u)

Non-current assets held for sale (continued)
Immediately before classification as held for sale,
the measurement of the non-current assets (and all
individual assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is
brought up-to-date in accordance with the accounting
policies before the classification. Then, on initial
classification as held for sale and until disposal, the
non-current assets (except for certain assets as
explained below), or disposal groups, are recognised
at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell. The principal exceptions to this
measurement policy so far as the financial statements
of the Group and the Company are concerned are
deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee
benefits, financial assets (other than investments in
subsidiaries) and investment properties. These assets,
even if held for sale, would continue to be measured in
accordance with the policies set out elsewhere in note
1.

Impairment losses on initial classification as held for
sale, and on subsequent remeasurement while held
for sale, are recognised in profit or loss. As long as a
non-current asset is classified as held for sale, or is
included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale, the non-current asset is not depreciated or

amortised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #; % & —F4F A H =+—H IFF/¥

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

v)  Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party

is considered to be related to the Group if:

ii)

iii)

Vi)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to control
the Group or exercise significant influence over
the Group in making financial and operating
policy decisions, or has joint control over the
Group;

the Group and the party are subject to common
control;

the party is an associate of the Group or a joint
venture in which the Group is a venturer;

the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's parent,
or a close family member of such an individual,
or is an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such
individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of the
Group or of any entity that is a related party of the
Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be

influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the

entity.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1.

(LU Tt E)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

w)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the executive directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker, for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business

and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated
if they share a majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #; % & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued two revised HKFRSs, a number
of amendments to HKFRSs and two new Interpretations
that are first effective for the current accounting period
of the Group and the Company. Of these. the following
developments are relevant to the Group's financial

statements:

° HKFRS 3 (revised 2008), Business Combinations

o Amendments to HKAS 27, Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements

o Amendments to HKFRS 5, Non-Current Assets held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations — plan to sell the

controlling interest in a subsidiary

o Amendment to HKAS 39, Financial Instruments:

Recognition and Measurement — eligible hedged items

° Improvements to HKFRSs (2009)

. HK(IFRIC) 17, Distributions of Non-cash Assets to
Owners

o HK-Int 5, Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that

Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current

accounting period.

2.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICq]H)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The amendment to HKAS 39 has had no material impact on
the Group's financial statements as the amendment was
consistent with policies already adopted by the Group. The
other developments resulted in changes in accounting policy
but none of these changes in policy (excluding HK-Int 5) have
a material impact on the current or comparative periods, for

the following reasons:

° The impact of the majority of the revisions to HKFRS
3, HKAS 27, HKFRS 5 and HK(IFRIC) 17 have not
yet had a material effect on the Group's financial
statements as these changes will first be effective as
and when the Group enters into a relevant transaction
(for example, a business combination, a disposal of
a subsidiary or a non-cash distribution) and there is
no requirement to restate the amounts recorded in

respect of previous such transactions.

° The impact of the amendments to HKFRS 3 (in respect
of recognition of acquiree’s deferred tax assets) and
HKAS 27 (in respect of allocation of losses to non-
controlling interests (previously known as minority
interests) in excess of their equity interest) have
had no material impact as there is no requirement to
restate amounts recorded in previous periods and no
such deferred tax assets or losses arose in the current

period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #; % & —F4F A H =+—H IFF/¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. S EHBOR (8)
(CONTINUED)

The amendment introduced by the /mprovements to
HKFRSs (2009) omnibus standard in respect of HKAS
17, Leases, resulted in a change of classification of
certain of the Group's leasehold land interests located
in the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, but
this had no material impact on the amounts recognised
in respect of these leases as the lease premiums in
respect of all such leases are fully paid and are being

amortised over the remaining length of the lease term.

Further details of these changes in accounting policy are as

follows:

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 3 (revised
2008), any business combination acquired on or after
1 January 2010 will be recognised in accordance
with the new requirements and detailed guidance
contained in HKFRS 3 (revised 2008). These include
the following changes in accounting policies:

- Transaction costs that the Group incurs in
connection with a business combination, such as
finder's fees, legal fees, due diligence fees, and
other professional and consulting fees, will be
expensed as incurred, whereas previously they
were accounted for as part of the cost of the
business combination and therefore impacted

the amount of goodwill recognised.

- If the Group holds interests in the acquiree
immediately prior to obtaining control, these
interests will be treated as if disposed of and re-
acquired at fair value on the date of obtaining
control. Previously, the step-up approach would
have been applied, whereby goodwill was
computed as if accumulated at each stage of the

acquisition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Contingent consideration will be measured at
fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes in the measurement of that
contingent consideration unrelated to facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date will be recognised in profit or loss, whereas
previously these changes were recognised
as an adjustment to the cost of the business
combination and therefore impacted the amount

of goodwill recognised.

If the acquiree has accumulated tax losses or
other temporary deductible differences and
these fail to meet the recognition criteria for
deferred tax assets at the date of acquisition,
then any subsequent recognition of these assets
will be recognised in profit or loss, rather than as

an adjustment to goodwill as was previously the
policy.

In addition to the Group’'s existing policy
of measuring the non-controlling interests
(previously known as the “minority interests”)
in the acquiree at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net
identifiable assets, in future the Group may elect,
on a transaction by transaction basis, to measure

the non-controlling interest at fair value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #; % & —F4F A H =+—H IFF/¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. S EHBOR (8)
(CONTINUED)

In accordance with the transitional provisions in
HKFRS 3 (revised 2008), these new accounting
policies will be applied prospectively to any business
combinations in the current or future periods. The new
policy in respect of recognition in the movement of
deferred tax assets will also be applied prospectively
to accumulated tax losses and other temporary
deductible differences acquired in previous business
combinations. No adjustments have been made to
the carrying values of assets and liabilities that arose
from business combinations whose acquisition dates

preceded the application of this revised standard.

As a result of the adoption of HKAS 27 (amended
2008), the following changes in policies will be applied

as from 1 January 2010:

- If the Group acquires an additional interest in a
non-wholly owned subsidiary, the transaction
will be accounted for as a transaction with equity
shareholders (the non-controlling interests)
in their capacity as owners and therefore no
goodwill will be recognised as a result of such
transactions. Similarly, if the Group disposes of
part of its interest in a subsidiary but still retains
control, this transaction will also be accounted
for as a transaction with equity shareholders
(the non-controlling interests) in their capacity
as owners and therefore no profit or loss will
be recognised as a result of such transactions.
Previously the Group treated such transactions
as step-up transactions and partial disposals,

respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2. CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

If the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
transaction will be accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
any remaining interest retained by the Group
being recognised at fair value as if reacquired.
In addition, as a result of the adoption of
the amendment to HKFRS 5, if at the end of
reporting period the Group has the intention to
dispose of a controlling interest in a subsidiary,
the entire interest in that subsidiary will be
classified as held for sale (assuming that the held
for sale criteria in HKFRS 5 are met) irrespective
of the extent to which the Group will retain
an interest. Previously such transactions were

treated as partial disposals.

In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKAS
27, these new accounting policies will be applied
prospectively to transactions in current or future
periods and therefore previous periods have not been

restated.
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2.

Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #; % & —F4F A H =+—H IFF/¥

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Other changes in accounting policies which are relevant to
the Group's financial statements are as follows:

° As a result of the amendments to HKAS 27, as from
1 January 2010 any losses incurred by a non-wholly
owned subsidiary will be allocated between the
controlling and non-controlling interests in proportion
to their interests in that entity, even if this results
in a deficit balance within consolidated equity being
attributed to the non-controlling interests. Previously, if
the allocation of losses to the non-controlling interests
would have resulted in a deficit balance, the losses
were only allocated to the non-controlling interests
if the non-controlling interests were under a binding
obligation to make good the losses. In accordance
with the transitional provisions in HKAS 27, this new
accounting policy is being applied prospectively and
therefore previous periods have not been restated.

° As a result of the amendment to HKAS 17, Leases,
arising from the “Improvements to HKFRSs (2009)"
omnibus standard, the Group has re-evaluated the
classification of its interests in leasehold land as to
whether, in the Group's judgement, the lease transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the land such that the Group is in a position
economically similar to that of a purchaser. The Group
has concluded that the classification of such leases as
operating leases continues to be appropriate, with the
exception of those interests which are registered and
transferable ownership interests in land located in the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and subject
to the Government’s land policy of renewal without
payment of additional land premium. These leasehold
interests will no longer be classified by the Group as
operating leases as the Group considers that it isin a
position economically similar to that of a purchaser.
This change in accounting policy has no material
impact on the current or previous periods as the lease
premiums in respect of all such leases are fully paid
and are being amortised over the remaining length of
the lease term.

2.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU TTtHE)

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (“HK-Int 5”), Presentation of
Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause,
clarifies that term loans that include a clause that gives the
lender the unconditional right to call the loans at any time
(‘repayment on demand clause’) should be classified by
the borrower as current liabilities. The Group has applied
HK-Int 5 for the first time in the current year. Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 requires retrospective application.

In order to comply with the requirements of Hong Kong
Interpretation 5, the Group has changed its accounting policy
on the classification of term loans that contain a repayment
on demand clause. Under the new policy, term loans with
clauses which give the lender the unconditional right to call
the loan at any time are classified as current liabilities in the
statement of financial position. Previously such term loans
were classified in accordance with the agreed repayment
schedule unless the Group had breached any of the loan
covenants set out in the agreement as of the reporting date
or otherwise had reason to believe that the lender would
invoke its rights under the immediate repayment clause
within the foreseeable future.

The new accounting policy has been applied retrospectively
by re-presenting the opening balances at 1 January
2009, with consequential reclassification adjustments to
comparatives for the year ended 31 December 2009. The
reclassification has had no effect on consolidated income
statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity,
consolidated statement of cash flows and the Company’s
statement of financial position for any period presented.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #; % & —F4F A H =+—H IFF/¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.

(CONTINUED)

Effect of adoption of Hong Kong Interpretation 5 on the

(LU TTiAHE)

8 W Erut BOR (80

RMBBREESRHRSMBMRRRE

consolidated statement of financial position A
At At At
31 December 31 December 1 January
2010 2009 2009
R-E—FF RZFTHF RZZTNF
+=A=+—-H +ZA=+—-H —A—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T
Increase/(decrease) in i, Ged)
Current liabilities =K
Bank borrowings RITER - 441 689
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank borrowings RITIEK - (441) (689)
TURNOVER 3. BEB

The principal activities of the Group are property investment
and management, property development, property
construction and provision of horticultural services.

Turnover represents rental income, proceeds from sales of
properties, revenue from provision of property management

services and revenue from provision of horticultural services.

The amount of each significant category of revenue
recognised in turnover during the year is as follows:

AEBzIBEEBRMERERE
B MERER WERERRHRZE
BR#5 -

LEREBSWA  HEVEZMRE
I REREMEEERS 2 W
RERBRHEEZRSEZ WS - FAR
LBEPERZE-ERBRARRZE

BT

2010 2009
—E-TF —TTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiExT Fi&T
Gross rentals from the Group's RAREBEYEHEBRE
properties - 2,303
Gross proceeds from properties sold KRB E HEWE 2 TS IA4%E 373,150 29,850
Revenue from provision of property REREYEEEIRE < Wam 229 287
management services
Revenue from provision of KEREEZERS 2 W 3,119 3,227
horticultural services
376,498 35,667

Annual Report 2010 —F —F4F4EH 87



88

Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

4. OTHER REVENUE AND NET LOSS 4. JoAbBe s B e 4R
2010 2009
—E-FF —TTNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FBT FAT
Other revenue Hithlh g
Interest income B U A
— banks —R1T 231 95
— others —HAh 12 1
Total interest income AT EFAEREZ
on financial assets not TRIEE M EWA LTS
at fair value through profit or loss 243 96
Dividend income from available-for-sale AIHEEIE EHESZ
unlisted securities AR B WA 304 -
Others Hith 166 114
713 210
Other net loss HAth &5 18558
Loss on disposal of fixed assets & BElE B EE 2 B8 (5) (10)
Fair value gain on investment properties & MZE N EWKZ 30 -
Revaluation losses on buildings BFEHER (22) (70)
Available-for-sale securities: AHEERS
reclassified from equity BERENHE
— on impairment —RE (830) (70)
Net foreign exchange loss SNIE 518 58 - (986)
(827) (1,136)
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5. BRBLET Ol ), A
(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BEAT (&18), s R ek, (GEA)
(crediting):
2010 2009
—B-2F —ITThF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiExT FA&T
(a) Finance costs (a) RAERA
Total interest expense on N FEFAER S
financial liabilities not at fair THRAEREMET
value through profit or loss: ke
— Interest on bank borrowings — BRI A FREBH
wholly repayable within B8 2 R1T
five years EEHE 751 1,506
Less: Interest expense capitalised into & : ZEFWERNER(L
properties under development* ZFBHRE* (707) (1,212)
44 294
* The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 0.86% * BERATIAFE086% = 1.15%
t0 1.15% (2009: 0.84%-1.18%) per annum. “EENF 084% £1.18%) F
LAE AR,

The analysis shows the finance costs of bank
borrowings, including a bank loan which contains a
repayment on demand clause, in accordance with
the agreed scheduled repayments dates set out in
the relevant loan agreement. For the years ended
31 December 2010 and 2009, the interest on bank
borrowings which contain a repayment on demand
clause amounted to HK$29,000 and HK$41,000
respectively.

AMBRBEHBERGZ
ﬁ%iﬁﬂﬁ#ﬁ%ﬁﬁZﬁ
TER(BERTEE  AKRE
FIERER) ZREKE - BE
TE-TERZFTNF+TZA
=+—HILFE RITEKRHN
BARETETER  HlE
29,0008 7T &% 41,0008 7T °

i
N
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

5. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5. BRBEE O8) %A (8)
(CONTINUED)
2010 2009
—E-EF ZETHE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn T
(b)  Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) (b) EIRK(EEESHE)
Contributions to defined contribution FERMKEEIfT
retirement plan (note 11) (BsE11) 59 69
Salaries, wages and other benefits e - TEREAMER 4,197 3,622
4,256 3.691
2010 2009
—E-%% ZETNE
HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn FiEn
(c)  Otheritems (c) HtEE
Amortisation of leasehold land TE T 12 12
Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment HEin% - BEREERE 1,059 1115
Auditors' remuneration 72 Gl
- audit services —BGRE 480 445
— tax services — B RS - 57
- other services — B AR 77 595
Operating lease charges: SEROHEY
minimum lease payments . RERHFER
- hire of plant and machinery N 6 9
— hire of other assets (including -HREMEE
property rentals) (BENERR) 2,827 2,747
Rentals receivable REFEEMERY L
from the Group's properties less direct MERERES
outgoings of HKSNil THT

(2009: HK$1,044,000)
Expenses incurred for the settlement arrangements in
respect of certain sale transactions (see note 20(b))
Cost of inventories (note 16(c))
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year
ended 31 December 2010 has been made as the
Group has accumulated tax losses brought forward
which exceeds the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong for that year (2009: the Group has
no estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong).

No provision for Singapore Income Tax for the year
ended 31 December 2010 has been made as the
Group has no estimated assessable profits arising in
Singapore for that year. The provision for Singapore
Income Tax for 2009 is calculated at 17% of the normal

chargeable income.

6. INCOME TAX 6. MifiBL
a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement a)  EABARRNZBLER
represents:
2010 2009
—=E-F —ETNEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THAT FAEL
Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax REABIE - BEBREH
Provision for the year FREE = -
Current tax - Singapore Income Tax  ANEA%{ 18 — ¥ bR RIS 5L
Provision for the year FRERE - 379
Over-provision in respect of prior years B 4 EREAEE - (153)
Deferred tax RERIE
Origination and reversal of R ERZEERER
temporary differences = (82)
Income tax expense Frigfisz i - 144

HRAEEHE-_T—TF+=
B=+—BLEFEMNRFTHIES
BRAZFEREBELENMET
RN (ZZETNF A&
B N BB E TR
) - WO A B S RS B
f# o

A AN 52 [ 6 PO FE T DN L S A
FHERBUGA - MU EEHEE
—E-EFTZA=+T—HILF
BB REHEE - —TF
NEFIE IV BB IRES
JERBIMAZ 17 % 55 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

6. INCOME TAX (CONTINUED) 6. Pifesi (4)
b)  Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting b) R B A S B B S B
(loss)/profit at the applicable tax rates: it OlsaR) Rk
2010 2009
—EB-2F —TThF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRBLAT (B518), &5 (19,496) 85,814
Notional tax on (loss)/profit before  KFiRT (EE), HF 2
taxation, calculated at the rates HENIE - LEEADE
applicable to profits in the HERE AN R 2 R
jurisdictions concerned srE (3,217) 14,180
Tax effect of non-deductible TR IR B R 2B
expenses Fa 8,077 1,351
Tax effect of non-taxable income FERBPWA PG E (2,647) (17,292)
Tax effect of unused tax losses KRR ARBRIBEGE
not recognised ZRIE R 2 719 2,381
Tax effect of prior years' tax losses ~ ANFEFFBEFE 2 FHIE
utilised this year BRI E (6,211) (257)
Over-provision in prior years BAEFEREARE
— Singapore Income Tax — ¥ IS L - (153)
Others Hith 3,279 (66)
Actual tax expense BEEMIBRAX - 144
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 7. WA
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 161 of RBEEBRATEOE 161 (REECES
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: T -
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme 2010
fee in kind bonuses contributions Total
E2ic =i “E-ZF
e RENFIE MERAL  RIAGHEIER Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T TR FiET
Executive Directors: WTES:
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick EiR - 1,658 - - 1,658
Cheong Kim Pong ELE = = = - -
Cheong Sim Eng Fa - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors: BV IFHITES
Kan Fook Yee LS 120 - - - 120
Lai Hing Chiu, Dominic REH 120 - - - 120
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert BRLAE 120 - - - 120
Leung Wing Ning DKE 120 - = - 120
Non-executive directors: FRITEE
Lim Ghee & - - - - -
Cheong Hooi Kheng* s - - - - -
480 1,658 - - 2,138
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

7. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 7. W4 ()
(CONTINUED)
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme 2009
fee in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e 28 ZZTNE
ik RENNG BERA  EIRGEIR &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL T FEL FHEL FEL
Executive Directors: WIESE:
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick B2 - 1,248 - - 1,248
Cheong Kim Pong BeE - - _ - -
Cheong Sim Eng BRE - - - - -
Independent non-executive directors: BV FFHITES
Kan Fook Yee LS 120 - - - 120
Lai Hing Chiu, Dominic RE® 120 - - - 120
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert BRI 120 - - - 120
Leung Wing Ning ZKE 80 - - - 80
Non-executive directors: FTES:
Lim Ghee & - - - - -
Cheong Hooi Kheng* Vil - - - - -
440 1,248 - - 1,688
* Ms. Cheong Hooi Kheng's directorship is alternate to Madam Lim * EEEALtAMELLZERES -
Ghee.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 8. WmmEiHMAL
EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one IEESTFHALY  —R(ZFTAN
(2009: one) is a director whose emoluments are disclosed in F:—R)REF  HFWRWE7H
note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the W HMUEZ(ZTENF : IWE)
other four (2009: four) individuals are as follows: ATz F@mEmT
2010 2009
—E2-2F —"TTNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET THT
Salaries and other emoluments o N E AN 933 958
Compensation for loss of office BERL 1A = -
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEIER 40 41
973 999
The emoluments of the four (2009: four) individuals with the WE(ZEZTNE : IR ) EaFTMA
highest emoluments are within the following bands: T2 EFHBMEATHER :
2010 2009
—EB-2F —TThF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A N
Nil - HK$1,000,000 = —1,000,0005 7T 4 4
(LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO 9. A u)BELR BN AN O
EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE #), %A

COMPANY

The consolidated (loss)/profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company includes a loss of
HK$1,841,000 (2009: profit of HK$54,982,000) which has

been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

ARRAEZHBEABRLEEAE(ES
B)/HHBIEERAR R BREP
BRIE 21,841,000 02 BiE(ZEZ
JLEF + 457 54,982,000 7T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

10. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

a)  Basic (loss)/earnings per share

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share
is based on the loss attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company of HK$19,496,000
(2009: profit of HK$85,670,000) and the weighted
average number of approximately 2,631,652,000
(2009: 2,544,831,000) ordinary shares in issue during
the year.

In December 2009, the Company completed a rights
issue, details of which are provided in note 23(b)(ii).
The effect of the bonus element included within the
rights issue has been included within the calculation
of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2009. The effect of the rights issue was
to increase the weighted average number of ordinary
shares by approximately 152,420,000.

b)  Diluted (loss)/earnings per share
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share is the same as basic
(loss)/earnings per share as the Company does not
have dilutive potential ordinary shares for the years
ended 31 December 2010 and 2009.

11. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT
PLAN

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“"MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income
of HK$20,000. Contributions to the plan vest immediately.
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a) BRI OBE) B
FRENER) BFNTR
BEANAQNB L RITEEMNLE
$819,496,000% T( Z T T 1L
& 1 & #/85,670,0007% T ) &
BEITERRZ NETFHEL
2,631,652,000 % (ZZEZT N4 :
2,544,831,000 %) 5T & -

ZETAFTZA AREITEK
HR% - FFEE M EE23(b) (i) ©
HE-ZZANF+ZA=+—
BEFEERERABNZTE
Bt kR AT R & 2 4 5
DEEXzwE HRITE
A MEBIR 2 DN A
152,420,000 f% °

b) B (ER),BAA
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F+-A=t—HLEEEARR
TEEBETEETE 2 LR
B - RS (E18) B FE
GREAR(FE) BFER -

S5 A6 AKR It 3
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PIEHRBESERGIEEEENER
ZEEHITERBEATE S E (T8
MRERETED - RENERERFE
AHBYEEAETEZ REHIURK
TE - RIEAVMAESTE - BE
REESBEEKEEEHENRAZ5% M
ZErgElfts - BB RAEBEKRALRA
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

12. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are
organised by a mixture of both business lines (products
and services) and geography. In a manner consistent
with the way in which information is reported internally to
the executive directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker, for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the Group has
presented the following three reportable segments. No
operating segments have been aggregated to form the

following reportable segments.

- Property investment and management: this segment
leases the Group's properties to generate rental
income and to gain from the appreciation in the
properties’ value in the long term, and provides
building management services. Currently the Group's
investment property portfolio is located entirely in

Hong Kong.

- Property development: this segment develops and
sells the Group's residential properties. Currently the
Group's activities in this regard are carried out in Hong
Kong.

- Horticultural services: this segment provides
horticultural services. Currently the Group's activities

in this regard are carried out in Hong Kong.

a)  Segment results, assets and liabilities
For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Company’s executive directors monitor the results,
assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable

segment on the following bases:

12.

vig ke

AEBERTRADAE S EREED

ZEDBIREBER (ERMRTE)

ARt &y o IRIRELEIRD I R

RAFEMEAARAEIELERRE

FEHRITESTAE %i&éﬂﬁ‘t—@l

ZHR  AEEZINUAT=E2HD

B WEKEMEE ﬁiﬁ AR AR R

IATE2HAHE

- PERENEE:ZHRHEE
5 B 5 DA RN £ A M ZE EX
MERETHERS - A REHE
FEERS - ARERFREY
FHAaBUNERL -

- DERBR: ZOBPERNMEER
SEEEYME - AEBERE UL
FHRZMEEDEUNES °

- EERB: Zo0BRRHEZR
% ARBERERILFERZAE
EEHLNES o

(a) ZBUREL HWAERAMK

MO ERRE D BROEE
BRERNER—T]ZHTA AR
AMITESRATEREIERR
ENHEZEE  BEERAE:
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU TTtHE)

12. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)
Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets
and current assets with the exception of interests in
associates, investments in financial assets, deferred
tax assets and other corporate assets. Segment
liabilities include trade creditors and other payable
attributable to the sales activities of the individual
segments and bank borrowings managed directly by
the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or
amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
“adjusted EBITDA" i.e.,
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation”,

“adjusted earnings before
where
“interest” is regarded as including investment income
and "depreciation and amortisation” is regarded as
including impairment losses on non-current assets.
To arrive at adjusted EBITDA the Group’s earnings are
further adjusted for items not specifically attributed to
individual segments, such as directors’ and auditors’
remuneration and other corporate administration

costs.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning adjusted EBITDA, management is provided
with segment information concerning revenue
(including inter segment sales), interest income
and expense from cash balances and borrowings
managed directly by the segments, depreciation,
amortisation and impairment losses and additions to
non-current segment assets used by the segments in
their operations. Inter-segment sales are priced with
reference to prices charged to external parties for
similar orders.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

12. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

a)

12. 23 ()

Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) (a) rBkAL - WAl XA (a0
Information regarding the Group's reportable REE-ZT—ZFR-FTTIEF
segments as provided to the Company’s executive T A=+—RBUEFEZERY
directors for the purposes of resource allocation and fie K 5 E D BB RIB A AR RIT
assessment of segment performance for the years EERHEAEAEERE A
end 31 December 2010 and 2009 is set out below. BN T o
Property Property
Property investment development development Horticultural
and management - Hong Kong - Singapore services Total
NERERER VE NERE-HR Lt it
210 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 210 2009
TE-2F CITNE CE-RF CIEAE -3 CTENF C3-3F CRTAE IR RO
HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS$000 HK/$ 000
Thn  TEr Thn A TEm  TEn TR TR T Thn
Revenue fiom exterl KEHIERL

customers W& 0 287 373,150 - - 32193 3120 321 376,498 35,667
Inter-seqment revenue AERhE - - - 1M - - 99 - % 1145
Reportable segment revenue el b 87 B0 1145 - 08 4,089 301 s 4
Reportable segment profitfloss]  EAEER /()

(adjusted EBITDA) (A% EBITDA) 131 (1,262 10,830) [1377) 12461 3956 432 mn 219 104,60
Interest income flg JA/\ - /] 140 7 - 1 - - 140 %
Interest expenses flg - - - - - - - - - -
Amortisaton and depreciation iﬂ%i ik

for the year (1) - {3 2 - m (64) (65) (68) (144)
Fairvalue gain on ivestment properties 21152 ATERE 20 - - - - - - - 0 -
Fairvalue gain o transfer RS W

of investment properties 27 AT

o properties under development - 01990 - - - - - - - 01990
(ain on disposal of subsidiares LERBLT UE - - - - 12461 - - - 1241 -
Expenses incurred for the HETHERDEE

setflmentamangements inrespect  RHEAZFR

of certain sale transactions - - (56540) - - - - - [B6541) -
Income tax expense FERsl - - - - - (144 - - - (144
Reportable segment assets E1EEE 561 9 MM 60851 - B il %5 M4 68320
Addiions to non-curient Wﬁiﬁiﬁiﬁ

seqment assets durng the year AELE 8 7010 - - - 5 2 - 8% 7063
Reportable segment liabilities &’\,@EF m B 352846 281,58 - 856 263 64 353220 282,680

For the year ended 31 December 2010, there was no
customer with whom transactions exceeded 10% of
the Group's revenue.

For the year ended 31 December 2009, revenues of
approximately HK$10,404,000, HK$9,745,000 and
HK$9,700,000 are derived from 3 single external
customers respectively, each of them contributed over
10% of total revenue of the Group. These revenues
are attributable to the property development segment.
No revenue was derived from these 3 single external
customers for the year ended 31 December 2010.

HE-_ZT-—ZTF+_-_A=+—H
IEFE  AEBEHREFHRHH
BHBAEEWRZMN10% °

BE_ZZThAF+_A=1+—H
IEFE - 410,404,000 7T -
9,745,000/ JT % 9,700,000 %
ﬁzuﬁzﬁé’ﬁﬂlwﬁé =R E—HH

BFE  BESRALAEBRZHBIR
/\Eﬁﬁtﬂm%c‘i%% =155
BOEBREIB -BE-_ZT—F
F+-A=+—HIEE %=
% —HINE P A SR AT ] R
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 # £ & —E4| —H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

== HIEEE

12. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

12. 2% (480

b)  Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit or (b) W& BB - BASER - B
loss, assets and liabilities 7 R A 2 ik
2010 2009
—EB-2F —TThF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Revenue e
Reportable segment revenue WwE DB 377,467 47,112
Elimination of inter-segment D TR
revenue (969) (11,445)
Consolidated turnover mEExRR 376,498 35,667
Profit & A
Reportable segment profit WE DB RF 2,194 104,601
Elimination of inter-segment D LR
profit (39) (1,630)
Reportable segment profit REAEEHINEFZ
derived from Group's external WEH IR
customers 2,155 102,971
Other revenue and net loss HAbWas & BB FEE (144) (926)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB ARz W - 4,940
Depreciation and amortisation e s (1,071) (1,127)
Finance costs BE AR (44) (294)
Unallocated corporate expenses RO R B H (20,392) (19,750)
Consolidated (loss)/profit before BT S (B18), =
taxation (19,496) 85,814
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

12. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

b)  Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit or (b)  WEHARBGE - B E - E
loss, assets and liabilities (continued) e K B 2 SR ()
2010 2009
—E-2F —ZTTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets WEDBEEE 342,414 683,204
Elimination of inter-segment 84 9 FB T8 FE U Z0 IR
receivables - _
342,414 683,204
Other financial assets HEemEE 5,050 4,780
Unallocated corporate assets RAOMARRIEE 406,224 29,713
Consolidated total assets MEBERR 753,688 717,697
Liabilities =L
Reportable segment liabilities WEHEAR 353,220 282,680
Elimination of inter-segment WD LR ROR
payables - —
353,220 282,680
Current tax liabilities MEBTIBAE - 430
Unallocated corporate liabilities IO ATRAEE 8,189 14,526
Consolidated total liabilities e RERE 361,409 297,636

12. 23 ()
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

12. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

(¢) Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group's revenue from
external customers and (i) the Group's fixed assets,
("specified non-current assets”). The geographical
location of customers is based on the location at which
the services were provided or the goods delivered.
The geographical location of the specified non-current
assets is based on the physical location of the asset, in
the case of property, plant and equipment.

12. 2% (480

(©

H s R
TREFNER () AEEH T EI
BERzWak i) AEEZEEE
E([EEFRBDEE]) AELE
ZER o BRI EILATRH
MBREMEEREME S 38
EHERDEEFRTEMEREEE
BRATEE (AWE - BFE R&
wm=E)&n e

Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
REHINEF 2 W EEFRBEE
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-EF —TTHF —E-EF —ZTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FET THET FET
Hong Kong B 376,498 3,514 2,624 3,561
Singapore ¥ N - 32,153 = -
376,498 35,667 2,624 3,561
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

13. FIXED ASSETS 13. BsE¥ R
a)  The Group a)  AREHE
Interests in
leasehold Assets of
land held disposal
Buildings  Furniture, for own group
held for own  equipment use under Total  classified
use carried  and other Investment finance fixed as held
atfair value fixed assets ~ Sub-total  property leases assets for sale
il B RLEEE BIELE
IRTESIER REft FHEtH ETEE ZHE

BFERRT  EREE PN REDE ZER #E ApEE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TET TERT AR TR TET TERT

Cost or valuation: RESHE
At 1 January 2009 RZZENE—A-H 410 6,364 6,774 365,320 600 362,694 -
Exchange adjustments B R - 29 29 - - 29 -
Additions hE - 270 270 7,010 - 7,280 -
Disposals HE - (731) (731) - - (731) -
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - (286) (286) - - (286) -
Transfer to assets of ERENBARELE
disposal group classified JIMEERIEE
as held for sale - (443) (443) - - (443) 443
Deficit on revaluation B4 (70) - (70) - - (70) -
Less: elimination of W REEHH
accumulated
depreciation (10) - (10) - - (10) -
Fair value adjustment ATERZ - - - 101,990 - 101,990 -
Transfer to properties under ERERNERRINE
development for sale - - - (464,000 - (464,000) -
At 31 December 2009 WZZENE
FoA= -8 LW NG S W0 o o M
Representing: HER
Cost [R1E - 5,203 5,203 - 600 5,803 443
Valuation - 2009 fHE-—TThE 330 - 330 320 - 650 -
330 5,203 5,533 320 600 6,453 443
Cost or valuation: RERAEE :
At 1 January 2010 RZZ-%5-A—-H 330 5,203 5533 320 600 6,453 443
Additions AE - 134 134 - - 134 -
Disposals HE - (172) (172) - = (172) =
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAR - - - - - - (443)
Deficit on revaluation BB (22) = (22) - - (22) =
Less: elimination of W REESH
accumulated
depreciation (8) = (8) - - (8) =
Fair value adjustment NTHERE - - - 30 - 30 -
At 31 December 2010 R-B-B%
+-A=t-H 300 5,165 5,465 350 600 6,415 -
Representing: HER
Cost [R{E - 5,165 5,165 - 600 5,765 -
Valuation - 2010 fHE-—5-%% 300 - 300 350 - 650 -
300 5,165 5,465 350 600 6,415 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

13. FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED) 13. Bl ¥ (4)

a)  The Group (continued) a)  AEE (4)
Interests in
leasehold Assets of
land held disposal
Buildings  Furniture, for own group
held for own  equipment use under Total classified
use carried  and other Investment finance fixed as held
atfairvalue fixed assets ~ Sub-total  property leases assets for sale
B R R#EER BELE
UAFEFIE REf BRETH ETEE ZHE
BERRET BREE N RENE 2R aE  AREE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL FER FER FEr TEL FER FHr
Accumulated amortisation ZHBHRTE:
and depreciation:
At 1 January 2009 R-ZENE—A—-H - 2,658 2,658 - 160 2,818 -
Exchange adjustments EEE - 2 2 - - 23 -
Charge for the year AEEYH 10 1,105 1,115 - 12 1127 -
Written back on disposals HERERE - (449) (449) - - (449) -
Written back on disposal LERBARIZEE
of subsidiaries - (286) (286) - - (286) -
Elimination on revaluation BRI (10) - (10) - - (10) -
Transfer to assets EREHBARELE
of disposal group ZIERRIEE
classified as held for sale - (331) (331) - - (331) 31
At 31 December 2009 WZZTNE
tzAzt-R OO IO . O L . SO0
Accumulated amortisation ~ ZFHEHRITE
and depreciation:
At 1 January 2010 W=E-Z4-F-H - 2,720 2,720 - 172 2,892 331
Charge for the year AEEYH 8 1,051 1,059 - 12 1,071 =
Written back on disposals HERED = (164) (164) - = (164) =
Written back on disposal HEWBLRGER
of subsidiaries - - - - - - (331)
Elimination on revaluation BRI (8) - (8) - = (8) =
At 31 December 2010 WZZ-2F
PRt SO D . B
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2010 WZT-2F
+=A=+-H 300 1,558 1,858 350 416 2,624 -
At 31 December 2009 WZZENE
+-A=+-H 330 2,483 2813 320 428 3,561 112
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

13. FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

b)

<)

Revaluation of investment properties

All investment properties of the Group were revalued
as at 31 December 2010 and 2009 on an open market
value basis calculated by reference to recent market
transactions in comparable properties. The valuations
were carried out by an independent firm of surveyors,
DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, who have among
their staff members of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors with recent experience in the location and

category of property being valued.

Revaluation of buildings held for own use

The buildings held by the Group for own use were
revalued as at 31 December 2010 and 2009 at their
open market value by reference to recent market
transactions in comparable properties. The valuations
were carried out by an independent firm of surveyors,
DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, who have among
their staff members of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors with recent experience in the location and

category of property being valued.

The revaluation deficit of HK$22,000 (2009:
HK$70,000) has been recognised in profit or loss.

Had these buildings held for own use been carried
at cost less accumulated depreciation, the carrying
amounts would have been HK$473,000 (2009:
HK$492,000).

13, [ % A (4)

b)

)

Beve Pk wmAk

R_E—ZTFR_ZTTNF+=
A=+—8 "EENLEBR2E
ALE AT S E 2
ARTEEEEGHRERED
¥ o HEMRBASMEERT
ERAR(FHEBRESE
MEgdrgt 8 TWHMR
CIRCRERZES: k- D & =R I v
KEBR) AT ©

Ffe oA WA
RZE-—ZTFR-_ZFTNF+=
A=+—8 ' X&EEZZALY
¥2RHmSR s ARTMEE
HEEERAEF - hERBIA
EMHERTERLA(RESR
BRESIEMBeERE L
8 T30 ¥ 7 P (B 1) 26 30 B [
FRIE B 2 1558 ) #1T -

BEEE422,0008 T (2T A
#F :70,00087) ERNBmRE

ol

W& FHIEE BBFRRAR
E2HFEINNE EEEAEHK
£473,0008 T(ZZE T R F
492,0007%87T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICA]H)

13. FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

d)  The analysis of net book value of properties is as follows:

el ¥ (40)

d) PR HE

2010 2009
—E-FF —TTNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FBT FAT
In Hong Kong R EE
- long leases —RHEE - -
— medium-term leases —FhEIE 1,066 1,078
1,066 1,078
Representing: HER
Buildings held for own use AAFES R 235 E
carried at fair value BRETF 300 330
Investment property "B 350 320
Interests in leasehold land PR IR B & TR A1
held for own use under BRBEE T D
finance leases 416 428
1,066 1,078
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 14. JAHE A " 2 B ¥
The Company
RAF]
2010 2009
=S U
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Unlisted shares, at cost KEMRGD - RE 1 1
The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries TREREIZEFZEARAEREE &
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of EXBEIHWBATZEE -
the Group.
Proportion of ownership interests
BERRERLA
Place of Particulars Group's
incorporation  of issued and effective Held by the Held by a
Name of company and operation  paid-up capital interest  Company subsidiary Principal activity
TMALR BRITRAR AEEz  HALT h—EnE
NAER EEMY AR ERER ] NARE IEEH
Cheung Kee Garden Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of 100% - 100% Investment holding and
R EEBERAT Bl HK$1 each and provision of
450,000 non-voting horticultural services
deferred shares REERRIRM
of HK$1 each BER%
100REREE 1T
2 3@ 450,000 %
BREE1ETL
ERZEELR
Donwin Property Limited ~ Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% - 100% Property investment
RREEEROA & HKST each JES
2REREE AT EBR
Fort Property Management  Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% - 100% Provision of
Limited BE HK$1 each management services
RENEERBRLT 2REREE AT EER REERRE
Sui Chong Finance Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% - 100% Provision of financing and
Limited &b HK$10 each management services
mEHBERRA REREBI0ETZ SRR RARE RETERH
Sui Chong International Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% - 100% Property investment
(H.K.) Limited &R HK$10 each WERE

REER (BE)BRAT 2REREE 10T BB
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 14. AW A w2 B (8)
(CONTINUED)
Proportion of ownership interests
BRERRLA
Place of Particulars Group's
incorporation  of issued and effective Held by the Held by a
Name of company and operation  paid-up capital interest Company subsidiary Principal activity
TMELR BETRAE TEEZ  MALTF iRl
NEER E3E RAGHE ERER BB G TEEH
Sui Chong International Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares 100% - 100% Provision of property
Resources Limited B of HK$1 each management and
HEERERARAT 1,000 RERAEE 1 AT project management
LR services
RENEERR
ERERRYE
Super Homes Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of HK$1 ~ 100% - 100% Property investment
i each and 100 non-voting and development
deferred shares of HK$0.3 NERERER
gach
100 EREE BT
LERR100BREHREE
03B BRZERLER
Vision Capital Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of 100% - 100% Investment holding
& HK$1 each REER

2REREE BT ERR

108 Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7



Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

15. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 15. Al 4 ik ¥
The Group The Company
PN KT
2010 2009 2010 2009
—Z-ZF ZTTNF —2-ZF —TTNE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TEx FAT TiEn FAT
Available-for-sale BRATETH
unlisted equity HERET
securities at fair value IR T 5 450 1,280 - -
Available-for-sale BRAFER
unlisted debt HER LM
securities at fair value EBES 4,600 3,500 4,600 3,500
5,050 4,780 4,600 3,500
As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, the Group's available- RZE-ZFER_ZFTIF+_-A
for-sale equity securities were individually determined to be =t—8 AREAHHERANES
impaired on the basis of a material decline in their fair value TR E A HE (R 24(c) (i) BAA
(see note 24(c)(i)) below cost which indicated that the cost RIETRBELBREERE  EXT
of the Group’s investment in them may not be recovered. SERERA A EEERE - KER
Impairment losses on the investment were recognised in BEIETHIRRMEE 1() () Pl BUR R 18
profit or loss in accordance with the policy set out in note 1 mRAEER (R4 -
(i) (i) (see note 4).
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

16. INVENTORIES 16. 1
a) Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial a)  SIAHZEAMBERAERNZFREG
position comprise: I
The Group
N5
2010 2009
—E2-EF ZETNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTiET TET
Horticultural plants REEY 262 249
Properties under development for sale  BtHE 2 BEHYE - 487,149
Completed properties held for sale BEHERTYE 281,228 -
281,490 487,398
As at 31 December 2010 and 2009, no inventory was RZZE-—ZFRZZTTNF =
stated at net realisable value. A=+—0 WEFEA &R
SFEFIER -
All inventories are expected to be recovered within one FrBEREEHRR—FAKE -
year.

b)  The analysis of carrying value of properties under b) HHEZERE YRR
development for sale and completed properties held for Z S LR Rm LA i -
sale is as follows:

The Group

rEE
2010 2009
—E2-2F _—TTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
In Hong Kong BEEBA

- 50 years or more —B0F A+ 281,228 487,149
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

16. INVENTORIES (CONTINUED) 16. #H#1 (4)
¢)  The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as o) WERER B ROBUR A R 2 A
an expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: SWABWE :
Horticultural plants Properties Total
BEEY ES @t
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

§-%% -TTAF SR-%F CITE SRR TEAS
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T8n  TEL  FER  Ter  TER AR

Carrying amount of BEFERAE
inventories sold 577 474 300,157 28,449 300,734 28,923
Reversal of write-down FEMRED
of inventories - - - (2,029) - (2,029)
577 474 300,157 26,420 300,734 26,894
For the year ended 31 December 2009, the reversal HE-_ZTZhF+=ZRA=+—H
of write-down of inventories made in prior years arose IEFE - AR MEZ AT
due to an increase in the estimated net realisable value BERHHREH  HELEZ
of properties held for sale as a result of a change in Y3 2 il ET ] B IR FE LN
recent market transactions in comparable properties. I BAEFEZFEMREDE
FrEghn
d)  Pledge of inventories VR 5 €
As at 31 December 2009, the Group’s properties under —ERAFEF-_A=t—HB K
development for sale were pledged as collateral for the KESELECERRTURDT
Group's bank borrowings, details of which are set out ER - ERAKRERTEEZE
in note 21. i - FHEERME21 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17. B 5 B 30 A B WO JH

The Group The Company
AEE YN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E2-ZF —EENF —Z2-%2F “BRNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TET FAT TR TEL
Amount due from a e — R B AR
subsidiary LR - - 274,601 261,037
Trade debtors ERE SEX 544 511 - -
Receivables for monies EMpEERe
held by the solicitor B IER
in respect of pre-sale BX
deposits 19,863 112,675 - -
Other debtors Hiv KRR m 60 - -
Loans and receivables ERRERTIR 20,518 113,246 274,601 261,037
Rental and other deposits e kEmzs 1,610 1,475 = -
Prepaid sales commission ENHERS = 8,204 = -
Other prepaid expenses HpBIFAY 2,137 577 372 372
24,265 123,502 274,973 261,409

The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, non- U — I B A Rl 2 R T EK R

interest-bearing and has no fixed terms of repayment. TetEBEEFEENR -

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be FBEES NEMEIWERE  Eit#&ER

—FRYE K ER R

recovered or recognised as expense within one year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17. %5 B A RO ()
(CONTINUED)
(a) Ageing analysis (a) KRB H
Included in trade and other receivables are trade RE S RAMEWIRIEA - UK
debtors (net of impairment losses for bad and doubtful ZIRF (R RZRAEESE)
debts) with the following ageing analysis as of the end RmEBRZ R STOT -

of the reporting period :

The Group
rEE

2010 2009

—E2-FF —ZTNF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEIT FAT

Within 1 month —fEAAT 436 381

1 to 3 months —Z={@A 107 118

More than 3 months but less HBiE=1EA

than 12 months B R+—EAH 1 12

544 511
The Group's credit policy is set out in note 24(a). AEBZEERESHANWF

24(a) °
(b) Impairment of trade debtors (b)  MEBCR B Mk 2 WA
Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are EREWE SRR ZREERETD
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group FRABEEREDZA  RIEXREEE
is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in MU (B B < BB 2 M IR A1
which case the impairment loss is written off against Al REBER TNREBREDE
trade debtors directly (see note 1(i)(i)). BEREWE 5 R M (R M
1)) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

(¢) Trade debtors that are not impaired
The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired

are as follows:

17. S5 B 30 i MBIk X (480)

(©

ARV WA 2 HEWBCR S R
1@ B AR RN TR E 2 &
BHRKZIREDHIAT

The Group
rEH

2010 2009
—E2—2F —"TTNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FBT FAT
Neither past due nor impaired B AR B BT AR E 436 381
Less than 1 month past due BaE LR —EA 79 101
More than 1 month past due 2N —EA 29 29
108 130
544 511

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a range of customers for whom there was no

recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
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18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

18. B&RBEFHD

(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) BERBESEPE :
The Group The Company
T&EE N
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-%F ZEENE —E-%F ZEENE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET Tax FEL
Deposits with banksand ~ TFIARITR
other financial Hite pigta
institutions R 440,259 25,022 10 24,220
Cash on hand FHE RS - 1 - -
440,259 25,023 10 24,220
Pledged bank deposits BERROEE
for bank borrowings ZRITER - (7) - -
Cashand cash equivalents Bk &k 25 &
in the statement LR EEY
of financial position 440,259 25,016 10 24,220
Cashand cash equivalents P ABELEZ
included in assets of HERRIEEN
disposal group held forsale & KR EEEY - 3,625
Cashand cash equivalents  REFARETRER
in the consolidated ZEERAE
statement of cash flows (%) 440,259 28,641

At 31 December 2010, bank balances carry interest at
market rates which range from 0.00% to 0.5% (2009:
range form 0.00% to 0.01%). At 31 December 2009,
pledged bank deposits carry interest rate of 0.00%.

The pledged bank deposits were released upon the

settlement of the relevant bank borrowings.

At 31 December 2009, pledged bank deposits
represents deposits pledged to banks to secure

banking facilities granted to the Group.

RZE—ZTF+A=+—Hxz
RATHEF LN F0.00% £05%
(ZZZNHF :0.00% £0.01%)
ZHGHEGFE - RZTTNEF
+-A=Zt+—HRZEERBTE
FI20.00% 2 FIFEETE - B
RITERERNERBRITEEEE
FRARRR o

R-EBAF+-A=+—8
B LR IRAT I SR B IR IR T 4R 7T
BASE R A W R SR (TR
-
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 18. Bl&RBlE&%EY (4)
(CONTINUED)
b)  Reconciliation of (loss)/profit before taxation to cash b)  BREBEWE OFR) e B 2 A
generated from operations: ez Bk -
The Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZTTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRELAT (B518), S5 (19,496) 85,814
Adjustments for: AT % -
Fair value gain on investment WEMHEL
properties N EWRE (30) -
Fair value gain on transfer of BRI EYHES
investment properties to BRAYEL
properties under development NEEKE - (101,990)
Revaluation losses on buildings BFEhEE 22 70
Depreciation e 1,059 1,115
Amortisation of leasehold land FHE b 12 12
Impairment loss on S 2 IELET
available-for-sale unlisted BH 2 REER
securities 830 70
Finance costs BhE KA 44 294
Interest income B A (243) (96)
Dividend income from AR ERET
available-for-sale unlisted FH 2R BUA
securities (304) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries BB A B S (12,461) (4,940)
Loss on disposal of fixed assets HEEEEERIE 5 10
Reversal of write down FEMRE[D
of inventories - (2,029)
Foreign exchange loss i 5 E518 - 1,403
Changes in working capital: BEESEE)
Decrease in inventories GFER 205,908 4,739
Decrease in trade and g 5 RHE A EWARIE
other receivables B 99,284 2,699
Increase in trade B 5 NEMERIRIA
and other payables )i 215,870 9,074
Cash generated from/(used in) KERELY (FR)2RE
operations 490,500 (3,755)
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥

19. DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD 19.
FOR SALE

The assets and liabilities related to Goldease Investments

Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the

“Goldease Group”) (part of the property development) have

been presented as held for sale following the approval of the

Group’s management in November 2009 to sell the Goldease

Group subject to certain conditions. Such disposal was

completed on 25 January 2010. Further details of such disposal

are disclosed in note 28.

a)

b)

Assets of disposal group classified as held for sale

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

oy WUk R th A 2 A AL

Goldease Investments Limited & E
B A7) (%7 [Goldease (@ |) v B E
RBBEWMERREz—H5) BEEZ
ZENF+-ARGAEETRER
& Goldease & B 2 ## (/BB ~F & T
B B2HAFELE  ZHEER
TE-TEFE-F-F+ARHARK ZHE
EHHE— P RHIENMI T 28 1% 5 -

a) A BURFRAE 2 AL B A

The Group

rEE

2009

—ETNhEF

HK$'000

FHET

Property, plant and equipment M - WEREE 112
Inventories rE

— properties held for sale outside —FHELRE 2 /BRI

Hong Kong (freehold) Yz O AERE) 69,675

Trade and other receivables B 5 R E A EUARIA 21

Cash and cash equivalents ReFREEEY 3,625

Total e 73,433

Liabilities of disposal group classified as held for sale

b) BN R A A AL £

The Group
rEE
2009
—ETNF
HK$'000
FHET

Amount due to a substantial e —(EE ZRREFIR
shareholder (note 27(b)) (FF5E27(0)) 216
Trade creditors FERTE SRR 28
Other creditors and accrued charges H b~ BE 3N & E 5T B 5% 188
Rental and other deposits received WS M Eithits 424
Tax payables JERTRIR 430
Total #st 1,286
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

19. DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD 19. A ABFHEREZ BN

FOR SALE (CONTINUED) (#)
(¢) Cumulative income or expense recognised directly in (c) HIERAAB I bfzBasM
equity relating to disposal group classified as held for W 2Z B 2 e i 2 3R T A g B
sale *x
2009
—ETNF
HK$'000
FH&T
Foreign exchange translation SINGEE FEE 5, 3 B
adjustments 9,386
. THER PAYABLE
20. TRADEAND O > 20. U5 B ICAHE R
The Group The Company
rEE VNG
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-EF ZEZTHhE —E2-2F ZETNE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx THT TR THL
Trade creditors R B SRR 25,637 7,950 - -
Retentions payable EIHRE TR 3,404 4,089 = -
Payable for over-subscription %A% 2
under rights issue e F0E - 7,468 = 7,468
Other creditors and HAERIRN
accrued charges RIEFFX 16,545 3,054 837 2174
Payable for the refund of sales  BhEFsHE THER S
deposit in respect of the REHEREZ
cancellation of certain sale &3R8
transactions 222,519 - - -
Payable for the settlement RETHERS
arrangements in respect BETHZ
of certain sale transactions JETFUR
(note 20(b)) (B#E20(b)) 56,547 - - -
Amount due to a substantial ~ ERf—EXZRE
shareholder (note 27(b)) B (FEE27(0)) 6,273 3,650 = -
Financial liabilities measured 1@ 5 4715k
at amortised cost ZBBak 330,925 26,211 837 9,642
Forward sales deposits BEEHE S
and instalments received GECNE 30,043 123,957 = -
360,968 150,168 837 9,642
All of the trade and other payables (including amounts due BRIEMREBFIBN  IBEE S RHEM
to related parties), apart from the retentions payable, are FERTBRIB (B IEEMNBEEA LFIE)
expected to be settled within one year or are repayable on AR FAASHIRERKERE
demand.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

20. SO 5h B JU Al ME A MR (480)

(CONTINUED)
(a) Ageing analysis (a) KRB H
Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors REZRAMBENEKRER - B
with the following ageing analysis as of the end of the B HRIBR MG R ZERE DT
reporting period: FORNE
The Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E2-2F _—_TTNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Within 1 month —EALT 22,909 5,433
After 1 month but within 3 months  —{EAZR{ETEBE={EA 8 43
After 3 months but within 6 months =& A& BB/~ 8 A - 38
Over 6 months HBid7NMEA 2,720 2,436
25,637 7,950
(b) Settlement arrangements in respect of certain sale (b) HAETHERHL LR

transactions

There were complaints made by purchasers of
certain units of a development property of the Group.
After consulting the Group's legal advisors and
for commercial reasons, the Group addressed the
concerns raised by these purchasers by offering them
two options:

Option (1): the Group will, at its own costs and
within an agreed period of time, carry out certain
agreed renovation works for a purchaser and pay the
purchaser a HK$600,000 ex-gratia payment.

Option (2): the Group will pay a purchaser at 120% of
the original purchase price so as to achieve the effect
of cancelling the relevant sale transaction.

Based on the information available to the Group, the
directors of the Company estimated the expenses
incurred for the settlement arrangements under these
two options to be approximately HK$56,547,000
which were recognised in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 December 2010.

AEE-BERMEETEMER
KEFIRAF - EHEAEE AR
BEREABRMNEERS A%
EEBRERHMBEEREEERERM
TERE 2 = -

HIE((T) ARERBERBTE
HEARERETE THEH
B RRAEXIMNBEMES
600,000/ 7T

HIHEZ): AEEBBRREZ
120% M B K F 58 - #e iR 5
SHIEEHEER ZHMR -

REBEAEETHEMER Q7
BRI EETHEENTHY
556,547,000 7T © 7% HRE
BT -TF+A=+—HL
FEZHEARTZRPER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

21. BANK BORROWINGS 21. BUTHE £
At 31 December 2010, the bank borrowings were repayable RZZE-—ZF+ZA=+—H " #17
as follows: BEARUTHEEE
The Group
FEE
As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 1 January
2010 2009 2009
—E-EF —ZTNF “EENE
+=RA=+—-H +=ZA=1+—H —A—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET FHET
(restated) (restated)
(E31) (E51)
Carrying amount of bank loans, which $#TEZREE @ T4
do not contain a repayment on BEREBEREX
demand clause, repayable: FE{SFRIE
Within 1 year or on demand R—E R E R
b - 145,493 -
After 1 year but within 2 years — BB NBBRE - - 128,000
After 2 years but within 5 years I RETBALF - - 1,617
- 145,493 129,617
Carrying amount of bank loan, which $ETEXEEE - 24
contains a repayment on demand BEREBERER
clause, repayable based on scheduled {508 ' REER
repayment dates set out in the loan  HEFEFTEEHRAH
agreement: ERUTEREER
Within 1 year —FR 260 248 235
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRBTNRBRE 181 260 248
After 2 years but within 5 years MERBIRBRE - 181 441
441 689 924
441 146,182 130,541
Less: Bank loans classified B RITER
under non-current (BRERIENE
liabilities &f&) - - (129,617)
Bank loans classified under current ROER(BEBRY
liabilities &) aa 146,182 924
The interest-bearing bank borrowings, including the term ERTEE(BEREREEZER
loans repayable on demand, are carried at amortised cost. B TR AN AR o RITER
None of the portion of bank loan due for repayment after RIZEFIRFE - BER —F1&R3
one year which contains a repayment on demand clause is 8 B —FNEN -

expected to be settled within one year.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

21. BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 21. BT (B
At 31 December 2010, the bank borrowings were secured RZE—FF+ZA=+—8 " #£17
as follows: EBERERERET
The Group
rEEH
2010 2009
—E-FF —ZTNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FiExT FAET
Bank loan RITER
— Secured — B - 145,493
— Unsecured — 441 689
441 146,182
At 31 December 2009, the bank facilities of certain R-ZBZAF+_A=+—B &T
subsidiaries were secured by: MEARZIRITRE B T 55K
A

—EFANF+_A=1+—8"

i) fixed charges over the properties under development

for sale with carrying amount of HK$487,149,000 as at AR (8 /5 487,149,000 7T 2 Bt
31 December 2009; HEZBRPME L EFEER

i) fixed charges over certain of the Group's properties i) BREI41E /48,508,000 L2
situated in Singapore with an aggregate carrying value SEE TR 2 32 B
of HK$48,508,000; TE R

i) assignment of insurance, sale and rental proceeds of i) BEELELMCRBEBRIME Y
the aforementioned properties situated in Hong Kong ¥2RB - HERBEESMEX
and Singapore; I8

iv)  charges over certain of the Group's bank deposits of iv)  AEEETRTERT7,000#E T
HK$7,000; LR
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #f% & —F4Ff " H =
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

21.

T—H I
(LU TTtHE)

BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

v)  subordination and assignment of intra-group
and shareholders’ loans to certain wholly-owned

subsidiaries of the Group in favour of the banks;

vi)  floating charges over the assets of Super Homes
Limited ("SHL"), a subsidiary of the Group;

vii)  share mortgages over the entire issued share capital of
SHL; and

viii)  corporate guarantees given by the Company.

At 31 December 2010, the effective interest rates for the
floating rate bank borrowings range from 0.86% to 5%
(2009: 0.87% to 5%) per annum.

All the remaining bank borrowings as at 31 December 2010

and 2009 are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The bank borrowings are floating rate borrowings which
carry interest at Hong Kong Dollars Prime Lending Rate
(2009: HIBOR plus 0.79% or Hong Kong Dollars Prime
Lending Rate).
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21.

BT A £ ()

V) URTAXZEASEERRET
AEEET2EMBAR ZKR
ERRBRIER T AR

vi)  Super Homes Limited ([SHL )
(REBWBAR) 2EEZZE
R

vii)  BESHLZ 2B B1TIRA Z 1%

R

vii)  ARBWEH Z ARER -

RZE—ZTF+—A=+—80" &%
BF X B ZRITEEZERMEN
FTREGF0SBEESBE(—TETNF
0.87EZES5E) -

RZE-—TER_FTTNAEFE+A
—t+—HBHTRITEEHUAE T
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(ZZETNF  REB
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22. INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF

Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

22. WHBHR DL M Z BBt

FINANCIAL POSITION
a) Income tax recoverable/ (payable) in the consolidated ) mMAEMBRRIAERAZ UK
statement of financial position represents: B, () FrisBiis -
The Group
TEE
2010 2009
—EB-EF —EThEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
THERT TET
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax BRNEREERE - -
for the year
b)  Deferred tax liabilities recognised: b) CHERBZIEEREAL

The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position and

the movements during the year are as follows:

HEMBIMRAR AN ERIEER
RAEZRD LFRZEHMT

The Group
FEE
Revaluation Fair value
of adjustment for
investment properties
property held for sale Total
FEHE
MEZ AN TFE
RENEE R st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FTET FRET
At 1 January 2009 RZEENF—HA—H - 83 83
Exchange adjustments M 5, S - (1) (1
Credited to profitor loss Bz &RMNEEA - (82) (82)
At 31 December 2009, R-ZZBTNF
1 January 2010 +—A=+—8"
and 31 December 2010 S =
R=-ZT—TF
+=ZA=+—H - - -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICA]H)

22. INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF 22. WERBLER N Z P8 (41)

FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

b)  Deferred tax liabilities recognised: (Continued) b) UMRZIBEBHAL - ()
The Group
rEE
2010 2009
—E-EF ZTTNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHT
Net deferred tax liabilities IREMBIRRNEA
recognised on the RELERIA
consolidated statement BEYE
of financial position - -
¢)  Deferred tax assets not recognised ©) AR B B
i) The Group i) I
In accordance with the accounting policy set out RIEM 1P IHE 2 &5
in note 1(p), at 31 December 2010, the Group has BEX R-ZE—ZF+-A
not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of =t+—B  AEBELER
cumulative tax losses of HK$235,532,000 (2009: 235,532,000 7T (ZFE N,
HK$339,799,000) as it is not probable that future 4 : 339,799,000/87T) Z &
taxable profits against which the tax losses can TRIB S IERRIEERIEE
be utilised will be available in the relevant tax B BAREBEEzHB%aA
jurisdiction and for the respective entity. The tax R A BRI B RS K]
losses do not expire under current tax legislation. BEEE A R 2R IE AR FIDAVE
TIEEEEE 2 A - RIBR
IMBER - ZEBIEEE
WAREFIHG -
ii)  The Company i) AL AE]

At 31 December 2010, the Company has
cumulative tax losses of HK$15,684,000 (2009:
HK$14,312,000) available for set-off against
future taxable profits for an unlimited period of
time. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of such cumulative tax losses as it is
not probable that future taxable profits against
which the tax losses can be utilized will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and such
tax losses are subject to the agreement with the
tax authority.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

23. CAPITAL AND RESERVES 23. B B
a)  Movements in components of equity a)  HELRHLIR 2 2 S )
The reconciliation between the opening and REBZIFEERSHEKBD 2
closing balances of each component of the Group's H BB R s e 2 HIRE A R B
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated B EE - NQFHER . ER
statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes BRI DR FEIRFERZ EET
in the Company’s individual components of equity BER T :

between the beginning and the end of the year are set

out below:
The Company ., A |
Capital
Share Share  redemption Contributed  Fairvalue Accumulated
capital ~ premium reserve surplus reserve losses Total
BAER
kx  RiEE R HARR  LNTERE  EiEE 3
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TER T TEn TEn TEn TEn TER
At 1 January 2009 R-EENE-A-H 119620 - 121 234897 - (209 207429
Sheres issued upon rights issue BTN 11,962 4785 - - - - 16,747
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ EREENEEE - - - - k) 54,982 55,312
At 31 December 2009 RZENETZA=T-A 131,582 478 121 234897 30 02221 219488
At 1 January 2010 W=3-F£-5-H 131,582 4,785 121 234,897 330 (92,227) 279,488
Total comprehensive loss for the year ERFEFEER - - - - 1,100 (1,841) (781)
At 31 December 2010 WoE-EE+-A=1-A 1315582 4,785 12 234,897 1430 (94,068) 218,141
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

23. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED) 23. HAR KA ()

b)  Share capital b) B
i) Authorised and issued share capital i) BEERCETRE
2010 2009
—Z-Ef “TTNE
No. of shares  Nominal value No. of shares  Nominal value
RPEE [EED RinEE HfE
‘000 HK$’000 '000 HK$'000
ThR TERT Fix THET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of SREE0.05
HK$0.05 each AL LR 3,000,000 150,000 3,000,000 150,000
Ordinary shares, issued and BER  SBT
fully paid: RERE
At 1 January »—HA—H 2,631,652 131,582 2,392,411 119,620
Shares issued upon HARET 2 R
rights issue - - 239,241 11,962
At 31 December B+=—A=1+—H 2,631,652 131,582 2,631,652 131,682
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to TEIREFEAEABEERT
receive dividends as declared from time to BERZKRE  BEAR
time and are entitled to one vote per share at AlEeEreRTE—ZK
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares S AT EREARA
rank equally with regard to the Company’s RIZRHEEZHRSE
residual assets. o
ii) Shares issued upon rights issue i) IR T2 R

On 30 December 2009, the Company issued
239,241,098 rights shares of HK$0.05 par
value each on the basis of one rights share for
every ten shares held at a subscription price of
HK$0.07 per rights share.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

23. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

<)

d)

Nature and purpose of reserves

i) Share premium and capital redemption reserve
The application of the share premium account
and capital redemption reserve is governed by

the Bermuda Companies Act.

ii)  Contributed surplus
The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the difference between the nominal
value of the shares issued by the Company and
the aggregate of the share capital and the share
premium accounts of the subsidiaries acquired.
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the Company may make distributions
to its members out of contributed surplus in

certain circumstances.

iii)  Exchange reserve
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the

accounting policies set out in note 1(s).

iv)  Fair value reserve
The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of available-for-
sale securities held at the end of the reporting
period and is dealt with in accordance with the

accounting policies set out in notes 1(e) and (i).

Distributability of reserves
At 31 December 2010, the aggregate amount
of reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company was HK$140,829,000
(2009: HK$142,670,000).

23. YA Refili (4)

<)

d)

i 45 VLB B T &

D) RO E A ] (i
P& 19 )4 18 B N & 7R 8 [B] 6
B2 ERXBREQRE
BEE -

i) AL
RRABHARBIERRA
BB AT AR 2 T E B PT UL
BB R Az A RRG
HERAEZEZE - RIE
BRE-NN-FRAE
(EFT)  ARARET
BHTAREKERAS
A &R -

i) FESL G
ELFEHEESMERRE
BINEBHBRRELEZ
PE S ERE o R FH IR
1(s) PRELE AT BURERIE -

iv) LT R
AFERHEBERRES
AFEZAHEERSQ
FEZRABEFEE
MEE1(e) B (i) PREL Z BT IR
RERIE o

43 Vil G
W-—E—ZTF+-_F=+—8"
ADEFARRIEZRZEAZRR
H48%85140,829,000 (=%
TNF ¢ 142,670,000 7T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU TTtHE)

23. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

e)

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing

access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of

changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors
its capital structure on the basis of a net debt-to-capital
ratio. For this purpose the Group defines net debt as
total debt (which includes interest-bearing loans and
borrowings, other financial liabilities) less cash and
bank balances. Capital comprises all components of
equity.

During 2010, the Group's strategy, which was
unchanged from 2009, was to maintain the net debt-

to-capital ratio at below 60%.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

23. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED) 23

e) Capital management (Continued)

The net debt-to-capital ratio at 31 December 2010 and

2009 was as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

- B R G (B

e) AR ()
RIE-—FTFR-_FTNF+
B=+t—BzE®FEHERL

KT
The Group The Company
r&E VN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-EF —TTNF —E-ZF “ZTNE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 THET FEL TAL THET
Total debt: BEHEE
Financial liabilities of DERBIELEZ
disposal group classified as HEERZ
held for sale SRAE 19 - 432 - -
Financial liabilities included AR S RE MR
in trade and other payables FrEzemeE 20 330,925 26,211 837 9,642
Bank borrowings RITIEE 21 44 146,182 = -
331,366 172,825 837 9,642
Less: Pledged bank deposits i : BHEAFRITFER 18 - (7) - -
Cash and cash RekBig
equivalents =8 18 (440,259) (25,016) (10) (24,220)
Cash and cash NEARENLE
equivalents of disposal ZHERRZ
group classified AekRe
as held for sale £EN 19 - (3,625) = -
Net (deposits)/debt (BR)/BBFE (108,893) 144177 827 (14,578)
Capital BAR 392,279 420,061 278,747 279,488
Net debt-to-capital ratio BRFBHES
BALE N/ATREHA 34% 0% N/ATE
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU TTtHE)

23. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

e)

Capital management (Continued)
At 31 December 2010, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed

capital requirements.

At 31 December 2009, as covenanted in the bank
loan agreement between a bank and a subsidiary
of the Company, the Group is required to maintain
the ratio of “consolidated net total interest bearing
debts” to “consolidated tangible net worth” not
exceeding 80%. For the purpose of this capital
requirement, “consolidated net total interest-bearing
debts” is defined as the aggregate of interest-bearing
borrowings less the aggregate of cash and cash
equivalent balance of the Group and “consolidated
tangible net worth"” is defined as the aggregate of the
amount paid up or credited as paid up on the issued
share capital of the Company plus share premium,
retained earnings or reserves less the intangible assets

and non-controlling interests of the Group.

Other than the above, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed

capital requirements.
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23. AR Refli (4)
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES

a)

Financial risk factor

Exposure to credit, liquidity and interest rate risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.
These risks are mitigated by the Group's financial
management policies and practices described below.

i) Credit risk
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade and other receivables and cash at bank.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, credit
evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. The
Group grants a credit period of not more than
30 days from the date of billing. Debtors with
balances that are more than 3 months overdue
are requested to settle all outstanding balances
before any further credit is granted. Normally, the
Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

Cash is placed with financial institution with good
credit rating.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country
in which customers operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure
to individual customers. At the end of the
reporting period, the Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk.

24. b B A% B R A P

4 B8 1R K

8 RBESRAXRARIIE
FEBEBZEFBREPEL -
ZERBRTEBTHIANEE 28
BEERRRERMSARE -

i) 17 B
REEBZFERREER
B 5 N H Ath & W BRIE A K2
RITHEEE - BEED
BIERKZEERE - I
HREEERRIFERE -

#T%&ﬁ@ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ

CREHERBEET
%%ZETZ%ﬁLﬂm
Bl - AEBKRTEE
HrBmAEHRERR
30H - MEI=EAKRLEE
BB EBANBEEENA
xéﬁﬁﬁéﬁT&$t
— W EE - AEEBR
R PRI -

ReBFRREEFRRE
& BT o
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU TTtHE)

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

a)

Financial risk factor (Continued)

i

Credit risk (Continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk without
taking into account of any collateral held is
represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the statement of financial
position after deducting any impairment
allowance. Except for the financial guarantees
given by the Group and the Company as set out
in note 26(a), the Group does not provide any
other guarantees which would expose the Group
or the Company to credit risk. The maximum
exposure to credit risk in respect of these
financial guarantees at the end of the reporting
period is disclosed in note 26(a).

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from trade
and other receivables are set out in note 17.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management,
including the short-term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands. The Group’s policy is
to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the Group's and the Company's
financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
end of the reporting period) and the earliest date
the Group and the Company can be required to

pay:
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

24. AL BE AT BB AP (1)

a)  Financial risk factor (Continued) a)  A@EBEEEK (4)

ii)  Liquidity risk (Continued) i) BB ()
Specifically, for bank loan which contains a TER BEBERTASE
repayment on demand clause which can be BIEITE 2 I IR
exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the BRZRTERME - D
analysis shows the cash outflow based on METRBEBEARIAZENR
the earliest period in which the entity can be BRzxRHEMECE
required to pay, that is if the bank was to invoke S HEMHIRITE R E
its unconditional rights to call the loan with BHAHEEER 2 E
immediate effect. The maturity analysis for o HMRITHERI A
other bank borrowings is prepared based on the AT HIREEEE KA H
scheduled repayment dates. fmEd -

The Group
148
2010 2009
~3-%F ZITNE
(restated)
(&51)
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BHRTEBSR AORTRRER
More than More than
Within 1 1year but Carrying Within 1 1 year but Carrying
year or on less than amount year or on less than amount
demand 2 years Total at 31 Dec demand 2 years Total at 31 Dec
Rt=A RT=A
—Ff  -FHLE =t-A2 O =t-Az
FHER DRAE g REE HEER DwE ag EAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
T TEn T Thn T Tir T Fiin
Bank loan subject to a ERBRETER
repayment on demand R RTER
clause L - M [ 689 - 689 689
Other bank borrowings AfpfiEE - - - - 146,454 - 146,454 145,493
Creditors and BRI R
accrued charges 324,652 - 324,652 324,652 18472 4,089 22,561 22,561
Amount due to a Ef—EEnmzE
related company 6213 - 6273 6273 3,650 - 3,600 3,650
Financial liabilties of disposal A {EH &R
group classified as held LERERE
for sale - - - - i3 - i3 43
331,366 - g6 BI6 169697 408 I8 17280
Financial quaranteesissued: ~ EEHZ &RHER:
Maximum amount BERNEASE
quaranteed note 26(a)) (F3E 26(a)) 59 - 59 - 185 - 185 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU TTtHE)

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

24. i BE AT B R AP (41)

a)  Financial risk factor (Continued) a)  A@EREEEK (4)
ii)  Liquidity risk (Continued) i) B E R ()

The table that follows summarises the maturity
analysis of bank loan with a repayment on
demand clause based on agreed scheduled
repayments set out in the loan agreement. The
amounts include interest payments computed
using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the end of the reporting period.
As a result, these amounts were greater than
the amounts disclosed in the “on demand” time
band in the maturity analysis contained in the
above maturity analysis. Taking into account the
Group's financial position, the directors do not
consider that it is probable that the bank will
exercise its discretion to demand immediate
repayment. The directors believe that such
bank loan will be repaid in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreement.

TRAREE R ZHPTH
WEEERZIHERE
RIERZRITERE A
DWHE - 2HEBHEER
BRI (AT B
T RARBREMREBD
ME)HEZH B A
Bt ZFEBEAREX
HEBMASMAEZE B D
WIRER] BEREEZS
B KA AR BB
N EERAR - RITTK
AIRETTE E B 15 4 5K AD
HER BFHE ZF
RITEREREERGZ
PretEt 285K B HER -

Maturity Analysis - Bank loan subject to a repayment on demand clause
based on scheduled repayments
SR —REHER 2 RERERRA ZBITER

More than More than

1 year but 2 years but Total

Within less than less than More than undiscounted

On demand 1year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash outflows

—FHE MENE FRES

eSS —ER RENT BENUT RENE stk

HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TR TR TEn Tin TR
31 December —E-T%

2010 TZA=1+-H - 216 184 - - 460
31 December —FENF

2009 tZA=1+-H - 277 276 184 - 737
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

24. AL BE AT BB AP (1)

a)  Financial risk factor (Continued) a)  ArhEBE R E ()
ii)  Liquidity risk (Continued) i) B E ()
The Company
N
2010 2009
i “FENE
Contractual undiscounted Contractual undiscounted
cash outflow cash outflow
ARRTRRER ARARRRER
Within 1 Carrying Within 1 Carrying
year or on amount year or on amount
demand Total at 31 Dec demand Total at 31 Dec
M+=A R+=A
—ERg ETr=FZ —ERg =t+-B2
RER a8 REE REL a8 R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TET TAT TAR TR TEL TAL
Creditors and ERERRENFS
accrued charges 837 837 837 9,642 9,642 9,642
Financial guarantees issued: DR ZERIER
Maximum amount BERNEASE
guaranteed (note 26(a)) (Hi3E26(a) 59 59 = 145,185 145,185 -
iii)  Interest rate risk i) FIFEE

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily
from bank borrowings. The interest rates
and maturity information of the Group's bank

borrowings are disclosed in note 21.

AEBEZHEREREEK
BIR1TEE - AREZR
THEEZNERIBER
MIEE21 #8E -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU TTtHE)

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

a)

Financial risk factor (Continued)

iii)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2010, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 1 percentage
in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, would decrease/increase the
Group’s result after tax and retained profits by
approximately HK$4,000 (2009: HK$6,000).
Other components of consolidated equity would
not be affected (2009: HKS$Nil) by changes in
interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates that
the impact on the Group’s result after tax (and
retained profits) is estimated as an annualised
impact on interest expense of such a change in
interest rates, which exposes the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk arising from floating rate
non-derivative instruments held by the Group at
the end of the reporting period. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2009.

Currency risk
Currency risk arises on financial instruments that
are denominated in a currency other than the

functional currency in which they are measured.

The Group's exposure to currency risk is

insignificant.
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24. i BE AT B R AP (41)

a)

SRR & (47)

i) P ()
IR SE T
RZ®—2&+ =7

iv)

s H'E%ﬁﬁMK
*I%%hT“Z\

ﬁ?mmmé/ﬂg
1“@‘%%%$%IZ
R A0 1% AR KR BB 0 DR
A/ B 494,000 75 (=
TZRF 6,000 L) °
A IR Z H M EB §T
ZREREEHTE(ZTTN
F T8 -

A

l\

REDMETEAR
EI%M&Z%%(&%
wA) 2 BT EE R %
MEBB 2 RERAIZF

ERE ASAREEER
R EANE B RS BRET
FZEEMETIAZRS
F R o D IRE
HoTTNFHERIEEE

77 o

B

5B K B R R E
REBONEEEEE
WINE SR T E o

AEBRE ZERRERIL
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

b)

Fair values

0

Financial instruments carried at fair value

The following table presents the carrying value
of financial instruments measured at fair value
at the end of the reporting period across the
three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined in
HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures”,
with the fair value of each financial instrument
categorised in its entirety based on the lowest
level of input that is significant to that fair value
measurement. The levels are defined as follows:

° Level 1 (highest level): fair values
measured using quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical financial
instruments.

o Level 2: fair values measured using quoted
prices in active markets for similar financial
instruments, or using valuation techniques
in which all significant inputs are directly
or indirectly based on observable market

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

24. AL BE AT BB AP (1)

b)  AVfE

i) BAFEIESTHTA
TREJNEREHR 2
BEEMBHREENETHE
BMTHE: REEEMETE
B R EE R HE S =@
E&kh o ARFEFED
EMITAZREEE
BRASBENERIAZR
FEEZHDERE ANK
BEHR BRGAHRF
BEfEREEZ - AHF
REBWT

© BIRBBER):
R 4% B 5 18
CEY B TET
CRE@E) AT
8o

o F2f: MREAR
ST EUERTA
HHRE  KBEER
WA ERREERE
REJBEM ISR

data. HERMN - FTEAF
-

o Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured o FIRM(HEEZER) -
using valuation techniques in which any FAEFREZH AW
significant input is not based on observable SEER A B RIS
market data. BHEERMTER

S
2010
“E-ZF
The Group The Company
XEE AN
Level 1 Level2 Level3 Total Level1 Level2 Level3 Total
£-8 B F=4 At B Bz =R &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr TFTEx TEx TEx TFTEx TErx FEx FiEx
Assets BE
Available-for-sale AfEE
unlisted equity LM
securities RS - 450 - 450 - - - -
Available-for-sale AHHE
unlisted debt FEM
securities BAEH 4,600 - - 4,600 4,600 - - 4,600
4600 450 - 5050 4,600 - - 45600
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

24. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

b)  Fair values (Continued)

i) Financial instruments carried at fair value (Continued)

During the year there were no significant
transfers between instruments in Level 1 and
Level 2.

it)  Fair values of financial instruments carried at other
than fair value
The carrying amounts of the Group's and the
Company’s financial instruments carried at cost
or amortised cost are not materially different
from their fair values as at 31 December 2010
and 2009.

¢)  Estimation at fair values
The following summarises the major methods and
assumptions used in estimating the fair values of
financial instruments.

i) Securities

Fair value for the unlisted equity investments
are estimated using the applicable fair value
measurement of the relevant assets and
liabilities of the investee. Fair value of unlisted
debt securities is based on observable market
data at the end of the reporting period without
any deduction for transaction costs.

ii)  Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
The fair value is estimated as the present value of
future cash flows, discounted at current market
interest rates for similar financial instruments.
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24. i BE AT B R AP (41)

b)

<)

AP (8)

) BRFEIEEETA
(#)
RERN F—RERE-R
TAMESKER -

i) R FEKIMEES KR
2R T AN FE
AEBRARRNSET
AOREE N RRESHE
AT R BEHAR -
E-Z2ER_ZTNF
TZRA=T—HHRFEE
BmERBA -

AT R
ATHAR et em T AR FE
B 2 T E ARG -

i) AEHF
FLEMEHREZATE
DERAKREAZHBEE
HEBEZERATEEM
FeEEMEBIFAR
FEDRRERRGTE
EmISEEE BTEg
FAEARI 22 5 BCAVEHIR

ARG

RNFELRABLUEET
BAZBRBEMENEFRZ
ARREREZ BEME »



25. COMMITMENTS

Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥

a) Commitments in respect of the Group's properties

under redevelopment for sale outstanding at 31

25.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

RYE

a) HEFBHRERPRTERELRD
ZE-ETERZZFETAFF =

December 2010 and 2009 not provided for in the A=+t—AREEEREEFE
consolidated financial statements were as follows: REZERAYERRZAER
T
The Group
rEE

2010 2009

—EB-E2F —ITThHF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FiExT FAT

Authorised and contracted ERERDETH

for but not provided for BRERE - 81,699

b)  In prior year, the Group leased out properties held b) EF AEERBLEHELDHE

for sale under operating leases. With the disposal

of Goldease Group, the Group did not lease out any

properties held for sale under operating leases.

The Group’s total future minimum lease payments

under non-cancellable operating leases are receivable

as follows:

The Group as lessor

FEEHEZME BELE
Goldease & [@ - A& E I BB
KERHHBERFEIEHEEZ
M -

AEERBETAIHEEEEHEO
AREUREESERENT

Within 1 year

—FLAR

After 1 year but within 5 years —FUERAFUARN

REBEAHBA
The Group

A
2010 2009
=5 =k
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET
- 1,797
- 423
- 2,220
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

25. COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED) 25. 7R ()

c)  Apart from the above leases, the Group is the lessee in c) BRUALEMEESIN  NEERBEIER
respect of a number of properties held under operating BEREENEE 2MEZ AR
leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of A ZEMEZTRFHBER
one to three years, with an option to renew the lease —E=F EEEMERRE
when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases BREEY  ZSHERERS
includes contingent rentals. RS -

At 31 December 2010, the total future minimum lease RZZ—ZFF+_A=+—80"
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in EBAMRNEMERPRAEREZ
respect of office properties and office equipment are TR BSE L AAIE T 2 R RE
payable as follows: NeERSEENT
The Group as lessee REBEREEA
2010 2009
—E2—Z2F —"TTNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Within 1 year —F R 3,074 2,877
After 1 year but within 5 years —FUBEERFUARN 1,314 4,206
4,388 7,083
d) At 31 December 2010 and 2009, the Company had no d »

material commitments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

26. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

a) Financial guarantees issued

At the end of the reporting period, the Company issued

the following guarantees:

i)

At 31 December 2010, the Company had given
a corporate guarantee to a bank for issuing a
letter of indemnity to a third party in respect
of a contract undertaken by a wholly-owned
subsidiary to the extent of approximately
HK$134,000 (2009: HK$268,000). The extent
of such facility utilised by the third party at
the end of the reporting period amounted to
approximately HK$59,000 (2009: HK$185,000).

At 31 December 2009, the Company had given
unconditional guarantees to banks to secure loan
facilities made available to certain wholly-owned
subsidiaries to the extent of approximately
HK$284 million. The extent of such facilities
utilized by these subsidiaries at the end of the
reporting period amounted to approximately
HK$145 million. No such guarantees existed at
31 December 2010.

The Company has not recognised any deferred income

in respect of the above guarantees issued because

the fair value of these guarantees was insignificant.

As at the end of the reporting period, the directors of

the Company do not consider it probable that a claim

will be made against the Company under any of the

guarantees.

26. BEAREE KA

a)

[BE4:iP4 3¢ 3
RB|EHRR - ARFREHHAT

i) RZZE—-—ZFF+ =R
=+—H XAFRBEH—
&N B AR ATEEZ
EHME=ZFELERK
MIITIEERAIERLD
134,000 T(Z T F 1L
£ 1 268,000/ 7T ) ° A ]
TR B BAZ
% g & # 4959,000% JT
—ZZEZ N4 185,000

JT)°

X

—EETANF+ A
5+—E| i WNCITRAGIE:S
TR AR HER - B
RETZEMBRALN
284,000,000/ T2 (2 E @t
EoNMER ZEFW
BRAREEBHAZEMET
47145,000,0007% T ®
—E-TEF-A=1—
A UTFEZEER-

ii)

RARARF LB BITERER
ERREIA - b Ty R S 1
RZAFEITTEKR RS
R - ARREER AR AEME
RMERNRARIBREEIHST
Koo
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU TTtHE)

26. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
(CONTINUED)

b)

Contingent liability in respect of a claim

At 31 December 2010, a subsidiary of the Company
was involved in a dispute in connection with the
contract for the foundation work on the redevelopment
of residential properties in Hong Kong. As claimed
by the contractor, the total expected additiona
construction costs may amount to approximately
HK$16.19 million (2009: HK$16.19 million). The
Company is of the view that the claim is based on
unreasonable and invalid grounds and therefore
unfounded. The directors of the Company are of the
view that this claim will not have a material adverse
impact on the financial position of the Group. No
provision has therefore been made in respect of this

claim.

Except for the aforesaid, the Group and the Company do not

have any material contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2010 and 2009.
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26. BOARNERE KA (8])

b)

B £ SRt & b
R-E—F

TE-ZEFER_FTTNFF+=A

N

W &R 2 B0k At
RZZE—ZF+-_A=+—81"
RAT—ENBARES—FE
BEEEEEEMEIHAET
BEHNz2FH MAEFAEH
B OEFENCBRERAMETE
#93% 16,190,000 T (T T K,
% 116,190,000/ 7T ) ° &R A
RE AEARRZERTTEE
N\ WA MERIEE - AR
RIEERA  RERZTFEAR
SE W HKREEERTFHE
2 WY ERISEPARIEL R
& o

N S ENYNE]

=t —BBEEAEAKAEE -



Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

27. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 27. HERBBALRY
TRANSACTIONS
a) Key management personnel remuneration a) FEATBA B4

All members of key management personnel are the
directors of the Company, and the remuneration for
them is disclosed in note 7.

b)  Financing arrangements b)

Amounts
owed to
related parties

EHEIEERABYRARAE
= HEMeRERMET -

e

Related interest
(expenses)/income

As at Year ended
31 December 31 December
#EREHALTHE HHBAFIE (i),
W+ZA=+—H BE+-A=+—-HLFE
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-EF —TTAEF —E-ZF —ETNF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BiE T FHET FTART FHET
Due to a substantial R —EEERRZIE
shareholder (i) 6,273 3,650 - -
Due to a substantial FAREHE ZHE
shareholder as ER=E -
included in liabilities ER—ExE
of disposal group &SR FIE
held for sale (i) - 216 - -
Note: 3T -

i) The outstanding balances with these related parties are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms.
The amounts owed to related parties are included in “Trade
and other payables” (note 20) and “Liabilities of disposal group
classified as held for sale” (note 19).

Details of new loans and loans repaid during the period
are disclosed in the consolidated statement of cash
flows.

i) ZEMBMALTZABERHE
i Tt B REETEERS -
BREABATZFANGFATE
S REMEMIRE] (M 20) &

[DEABIELENLEERNE
BERI(HFE19) ©

Hﬂﬁﬂ%ﬁi% RAECEEERZF
BENRBEREEIREA %2\% o
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

27. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 27, HEBHEA LY (4)

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

<)

Other related party transactions

i)

On 16 November 2009, the Group entered
into an agreement with Hong Fok Corporation
Limited (“HFC"), the ultimate holding company
of the Company from 1 August 2007 to 15
December 2009 and a substantial shareholder
from 16 December 2009 onwards, pursuant to
which the Group agreed to sell and HFC agreed
to purchase the Group’s interest in Goldease
Group at the cash consideration of S$10,150,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$56,434,000).
The transaction was completed on 25 January
2010 and resulted in a gain of approximately
HK$12,461,000 on such disposal (see note
28). In the opinion of the Company’s directors,
this transaction was conducted on normal
commercial terms and in the ordinary course of
the Group's business.

On 8 October 2009, the Group entered into an
agreement with HFC pursuant to which the
Group agreed to sell and HFC agreed to purchase
the Group's interests in Maincon (Building) Pte
Ltd and its subsidiary (collectively referred to
as “Maincon Group”) at the cash consideration
of S$1. The transaction was completed on
12 October 2009 and resulted in a gain of
approximately HKD4,940,000 on such disposal
(see note 28). In the opinion of the Company's
directors, this transaction was conducted on
normal commercial terms and in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.
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c)

FO Al B 2 N - 32 5

i)

RZEZERF+—A+
A AEERBREXS
RAB(BREEZE]D  ®
—EEEFNA—HEZ
ZZENF+_A+HABAE
RARZ &EERRAT
RZZFETZNF+ZA+N
AEAE—EEXxZ/RET
JHE BEAEERE
HE MBEEREXARE
HEAEEPGoldease
EEER BReRER
10,150,000 %7 hn# 7t (A%
R #756,434,00087T) ° %
RHER_ZE—FF—A
Z+HHBFER - AR
UK 25 4712,461,0007% 7T
(RMIFE28) - RARIESE
RE ZRXHGDHEERH
¥KF EASERATE
TEBIER T

RZZEZEAF+ANA
RNEEHEBEE ET W
FBUHAEERELRE
mEBREREZAREEER
%@ Maincon (Building)
Pte Ltd REME AR (5
[Maincon5@ ) 2 #z% -
BEREAIFIMETT %
RBER_ZEZTHFET+A
TZHZER - WERLER
5 #94,940,0007% JT( R BT
i28) c ANFIEERE
SRS THRIEFB ARG
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

27. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

c) Other related party transactions (Continued)

iii)

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the
Group paid management fee of approximately
HK$14.6 million (2009: HK$10.9 million) to
a subsidiary of Hong Fok Land International
Limited ("HFL"), a substantial shareholder
of the Company, for share of administrative
expenses. The management fee is determined
quarterly between the respective parties after
negotiations having regard to the cost of services
provided. In the opinion of the Company’s
directors, this transaction was conducted in
the ordinary course of the Group's business on
terms mutually agreed by both parties.

On 29 November 2010, a subsidiary of the Group
entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with a subsidiary of HFL, whereby the Group
agreed to sell and a subsidiary of HFL agreed
to purchase an upper roof of the completed
properties held for sale at a consideration of
HK$700,000. The transaction was completed
on 3 December 2010. In the opinion of the
Company's directors, this transaction was
conducted on normal commercial terms and in
the ordinary course of the Group's business.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, the
Group paid to subsidiaries of HFC an amount of
approximately HK$847,000 for share of office
expenses. There was no such payments for the
year ended 31 December 2010. In the opinion
of the Company'’s directors, this transaction was
conducted on normal commercial terms and in
the ordinary course of the Group’s business on
terms mutually agreed by both parties.

27. HERIEA LA 5 (4)

¢)  JUMBBHREA -2 5 (4)

iii)

iv)

V)

RBZE_ZT—ZF+=A
=t—RLEE FA£E
B 5 18 17 B X i A AR
NAEEREHong Fok
Land International Limited
(THFL]) —FIM B 27X
& B & %14,600,000
B Z T E h F:
10,900,000787T) - ERE
ThHRBBALTEEMIEMR
ZRBRAEERIEETE
BT ARAEZERA -
ZRSDIEAEERTE
BREPETIHIRE HET
S ARFEST o

ZE-EF+-AZ1+AN
A AEE-XHEAQA
HHFLZ —KM B A AT
VEBEWE B A&
B R ELERHFLZ —
XNEARIREHED T
TUFRERE2MEZIR
1 - R{BA700,000/7T °
ZRXFER -T2
+ZAZH®BTI - AQA
EERE BRXHE—
M ERRETRAASE
BEEBBEPREIT -

REBEE_ZZNFE+A
=+—HIEFE  FEEE
DR PR EF X RIS E
EXCZMBRREZNHRIEA
#7847,0008 T - BHEZZ
—ZEF+-_A=+—AHLF
B WEREEZEMNR K
NAEERE  ZRXH IR
—REEER RN AEER
BEBBIETETIIRER

RIS 2 IGFETT -
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

28. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 28. HEWEA

i) On 25 January 2010, the Group disposed of its interest i)
in Goldease Group, the details of which are also
disclosed in note 27(c)(i). The net liabilities of Goldease
Group at the date of disposal were as follows:

RZE—ZFTF—-A=+HA &
S Hj’%/ﬁEQGoldease Eljrd
@ BTN EE 27 () () HEE -
Goldeasexlﬁé\ﬁ’%ﬁ,ﬁﬁz,ﬁ%\
FREET

2010
—E-EF
HK$'000
FEx
Net liabilities disposed of: BHEZBEFHE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB R E 112
Properties held for sale BIER B 69,675
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E A ERERIA 21
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEFEY 3,593
Amount due to BN —REERFHIE
a substantial shareholder (216)
Trade and other payables 5 KR HAERERIE (114,720)
Tax payable FEATIIA (430)
Bank borrowings RITIEE (20,340)
(62,305)
Amount due from Goldease Group Goldease &L B & /K 2 ZUIB 114,078
Release of exchange reserve b i R (9,386)
42,387
Gain on disposal & 2 e 12,461
Total consideration, net of expenses BRE - HBRFEX 54,848
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEEZHRESRAFE
Net cash consideration FIRENRE 54,848
Bank balances and cash EHEZRITEHEIES
disposed of (3,593)
51,255
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28. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

28. B HHE A H (4)

(CONTINUED)

i) On 12 October 2009, the Group disposed of its i RZZETAFTA+ZH &&
interest in Maincon Group, the details of which are also HEEMPMainconE B 7 #
disclosed in note 27(c)(ii). The net liabilities of Maincon o FEE IR EE27 () (i) B -
Group at the date of disposal were as follows: Maincon REIRHE R B2 BE

FRIT
2009
—ETNEF
HK$'000
FHET
Net liabilities disposed of: BEHEZEBEFE

Bank balances and cash RITHEBR RIS 25
Trade and other payables B 5 &k E A EWARITE (150)
(125)
Amount due from Maincon Group Maincon S E#5 /K 2 5kIE 76
Release of exchange reserve bE 5 R (4,891)
(4,940)
Gain on disposal &z e 4,940
Total consideration BRE -

Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEEZREESRTFE
Cash consideration BReRE -

Bank balances and cash BB ZRITEBRRERS
disposed of (25)
(25)
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICA]H)

29. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Notes 13 and 24 contain information about the assumptions
and their risk factors relating to valuation of investment
properties and financial instruments. Other key sources of

estimation uncertainty are as follows:

a)  Depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives, after
taking into account the estimated residual value. The
Group reviews annually the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any. The depreciation expense
for future periods is adjusted if there are significant

changes from previous estimates.

b) Valuation of inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value at the end of the reporting period.
Net realisable value is determined on the basis of
the estimated selling price less the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale. The management
estimates the net realisable value for inventories
based primarily on the latest invoice prices and current
market conditions. In addition, the management
performs an inventory review on a product-by-product
basis at the end of each reporting period and assess

the need for write down of inventories.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #; % & —F4F A H =+—H IF ¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LIi#ICi]{H)

29. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

¢

d)

Allowance for impairment of doubtful debts

Allowance for impairment of doubtful debts are
assessed and provided based on the directors’
regular review of ageing analysis and evaluation
of collectibility. A considerable level of judgement
is exercised by the directors when assessing the
credit worthiness and past collection history of each
individual customer. Any increase or decrease in the
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts would

affect profit or loss in future years.

Current taxation and deferred taxation

Determining income tax provisions involves
judgement on the future tax treatment of certain
transactions. The management evaluates tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions are set
up accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions
is reconsidered periodically to take into account all
changes in tax legislation. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for tax losses not yet used and temporary
deductible differences. As those deferred tax assets
can only be recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against
which the unused tax credits can be utilized, the
management’s judgement is required to assess the
probability of future taxable profits. Management's
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional
deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes
probable that future taxable profits will allow the

deferred tax asset to be recovered.

29. WK kAt BOA i ()

ST AN R B A 2 A AU ()

)

d

R o 1 15 1
RRREREDRIEEE YRR
DT Z E Wi E kAT 1 2 7Y
EETTREE MR M - EERFHE
BUBAARF ZEEEERBE
WK R BRI R 1 H 2 1B FI B o R
HROR B B 2 (TR R S &2 B R
KREE 2182

BEMSHERSRHRXLRZS
RIS ERIZ A HIE - BIEERY
HERBEXHOHRBEE - WaHR
HEMNRIEER AEEEME
HMEBELXHOMBEE - A
RRBIAROMBIER] - BER
REEZMAN BB MATEN
R ERMER - ARRERIEA
BERRERAT LIS L FI A%
LT TR & B 2R A0 O R SR g AR
WMAEET @R MAREE
I A SRR IER A EA A]
Bl - ARBETHEHNEEEDN
aPfh - AnRIR AT BE IS BE R IR
ERBEENRRERMNE &
SRRBEINELEHRBEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #;% & —F4F A H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)
30. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 300 ABRE_F-Z4E+ A
NEW STANDARDS AND Z4— H kR4 OB M N R

INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2010

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and
Interpretations and one new standard which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 December 2010 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements. These
include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

LY T4 TIRE HR Y T
Z RS

RERSHBREZABAS 55
A ARBHBENRAHE T
—FE+-ASt—HEERARY
BT« FTETERIRRE CHRIEST - 71
T B T 2 FR o 50 Ut 55 B 7 90 5% o0 O
@) -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUT BEs 2 &R
ZEHBEXR

HKAS 24 (Revised), Related party disclosures
BB EFTERIE 2455 ([&IE35]) - B2 2 5%

HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments
BBV TEHMELERES - 2T A

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010
—E-TEHBUBWMEER 2 SE

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes
— Deferred tax: Revcovery of underlying assets
BBGTHERIFE 2R 2B - HEH
—EEHIE - fHR A ATt

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments is expected to be in
the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact
on the Group's results of operations and financial position.
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1 January 2011
—F——%—H—H

1 January 2013
—E—=F—H—H

1 July 2010 or 1 January 2011
—2-2ELA-AR-F—F-A—R

1 January 2012
—F——%—HA—H

A& B R IEF (V)RR %L BB R B
HAKEMRESTRZEZE -ZBAR
b AEBERBRER LA ERT AR
REEHAKE 2 KL RERP BN
ELBEAFE -



Group Properties 45 H ¥ 3¢

Particulars of the Group's major properties held for sale as at 31 REER-_Z—ZTF+_A=1+—HFFED
December 2010 are as follows: EZXEMEFHBOT
Properties held for sale i

Percentage

Gross floor area interest attributable

HIREMEE to the Group
Location Existing Use sq. m. REEELER
b:uk- RIEAR Tk Batt
34 units of THE ICON, 38 Conduit Road, Residential 2,210 100%
Mid-levels, Hong Kong
BHAFILTEEISH F=

THE ICONH)341E B iz
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Notice of Annual General Meeting J§¢ 3 38 4E K £ @ %

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general meeting
of the Company will be held at 12:00 noon on 24 May 2011 at
Room 3201, 9 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong for the following

purposes:

(1) To receive and consider the statement of accounts and the
reports of the directors and the auditors for the year ended
31 December 2010.

(2)  To re-elect retiring director and to appoint new director (each
as a separate resolution), and to fix the remuneration of the

directors of the Company.

(8)  To re-appoint auditors and to authorise the board of directors
to fix their remuneration.

(4)  To consider and, if thought fit, pass, with or without
amendments, the following resolutions as ordinary

resolutions (“Ordinary Resolutions”):

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

A.  "THAT there be granted to the directors of the
Company an unconditional general mandate to
repurchase shares of HK$0.05 each in the capital of
the Company and that the exercise by the directors
of the Company of all powers of the Company to
purchase shares of the Company on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (”Stock Exchange”)
or on any other stock exchange on which the shares
of the Company may be listed and recognised by
the Securities and Futures Commission and the
Stock Exchange for this purpose, subject to and in
accordance with all applicable laws, be and are hereby
generally and unconditionally approved, subject to the

following conditions:

(@) such mandate shall not extend beyond the

Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined);
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B.

Notice of Annual General Meeting J§ 3 38 4F K &y i 1%

(b)  the aggregate nominal amount of share capital of
the Company to be purchased by the directors
of the Company during the Relevant Period shall
not exceed 10 per cent. of the aggregate nominal
amount of the share capital of the Company in
issue as at the date of passing this Resolution;

(c)  for the purposes of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the
date of passing this Resolution until whichever is
the earlier of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general
meeting of the Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within which
the next annual general meeting of the
Company is required by the bye-laws of
the Company or any applicable laws of
Bermuda to be held; and

(i)  the revocation or variation of this
Resolution by an ordinary resolution of the
shareholders of the Company in general
meeting.”

“THAT there be granted to the directors of the
Company an unconditional general mandate to issue,
allot and deal with additional shares in the capital of
the Company and to make or grant offers, agreements
and options including warrants, bonds and debentures
convertible into shares in respect thereof, subject to
the following conditions:

(@) such mandate shall not extend beyond the
Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) save
that the directors of the Company may during
the Relevant Period make or grant offers,
agreements and options including warrants,
bonds and debentures convertible into shares
which might require the exercise of such powers
after the end of the Relevant Period;

(b) ZARTEZGRNEM@AM
WD 2 RAEERRE -
TMERBARRAFRARE
RBBE D BITRAR
BB 210% ;

(c) MARBERME :

[EBHRE ] EhBBAR
FRAPRETI =FH
Z&FHERIEZ HIE

(i)  ARBTERRBESF
R R

(i)  RADB AR
Rz BREEDIR
ERARARETE
RRBERE ZHR
fEmE &

(i) ARBBRAERRK
g EAEBRBERER
HRERARZERZ
Hel

[BRERIETARAESS
—RIRIEIA AT - BB RRRIER
RE AR Z BN - I FR UL
RIS SR I - ek R B AR
(BEREEE ErhER
REMNZES)  EAZTIIF
IR

(a) ZEETEIEEABHHE
(FERETX)LAE - AR
RAIEZEARERABEN
ISR AR
REREITEZEZENZ
B maELBRE(RR
REEE  BEFERAUER
RBRMZES)
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the aggregate nominal amount of share
capital allotted or agreed conditionally or
unconditionally, to be allotted (whether pursuant
to an option or otherwise) and issued by the
directors of the Company pursuant to sub-
paragraph (a) above, otherwise than pursuant to
(i) a Rights Issue (as hereinafter defined); (ii) the
exercise of rights of subscription or conversion
attaching to any warrants issued by the Company
or any securities which are convertible into
shares of the Company; (iii) any issue of shares in
the Company under any option scheme or similar
arrangement for the time being adopted for
the grant or issue to officers and/or employees
of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries
of shares or rights to shares; and (iv) any scrip
dividend or similar arrangement providing for the
allotment of shares in lieu of the whole or part of
a dividend on shares in accordance with the bye-
laws of the Company in force from time to time;
shall not exceed 20 per cent. of the aggregate
nominal amount of the issued share capital of
the Company in issue on the date of passing
this Resolution and the approval granted shall be
limited accordingly; and

for the purpose of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the
date of passing this Resolution until whichever is
the earlier of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general

meeting of the Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within which
the next annual general meeting of the
Company is required by the bye-laws of
the Company or any applicable laws of

Bermuda to be held; and
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C.
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(i) the revocation or variation of this
Resolution by an ordinary resolution of the
shareholders of the Company in general

meeting.

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares open for
a period fixed by the directors of the Company to
holders of shares on the register of members of
the Company on a fixed record date in proportion
to their then holdings of such shares (subject to
such exclusions or other arrangements as the
directors of the Company may deem necessary
or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements
or having regard to any restriction or obligation
under the laws of, or the requirements of
any recognised regulatory body or any stock
exchange in, or in any territory outside, Hong

Kong)."”

“THAT, conditional upon the passing of the
Resolutions Nos. A and B above, the aggregate
nominal amount of the shares in the capital of the
Company which are repurchased by the Company
pursuant to and in accordance with the Resolution
No. A above shall be added to the aggregate nominal
amount of the share capital of the Company that may
be allotted or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to
be allotted by the directors of the Company pursuant to

and in accordance with the Resolution No. B above.”

(i) ARBRREEREK
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(B (A EATERBIIRZER
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BRFRBE AR R RAS 2 I
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BERCE A IR R BRI R B
B2 RRBIRAHEELRE -

By Order of the Board

Winfoong International Limited

Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick
Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 April 2011

AEFEW
KREBEBERAF
EE

fEpmEa

78 —T——FOA+THH
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Notes:

A member entitled to attend and vote at the above meeting is entitled to
appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of him. A proxy need not be a

member of the Company.

Concerning Resolution No. (4)B above, the directors of the Company wish
to state that they have no immediate plans to issue any new shares of the
Company but approval is being sought from the members as a general
mandate for the purpose of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on

the Stock Exchange (“the Listing Rules”).

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 20 May 2011 to
24 May 2011, both days inclusive, for the purpose of establishing entitlement
of shareholders to vote at the meeting. During this period, no transfer of
shares will be effected. All transfers of shares accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company's branch registrar in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai,
Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 19 May 2011.

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, at any general meeting, a

resolution put to the vote of the meeting must be taken by poll.

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) of the Company, Mr. Cheong Sim Eng,
Madam. Lim Ghee and Mr. Lai Hing Chiu, Dominic will retire by rotation. Mr.
Cheong Sim Eng, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election as executive
director of the Company, Mr. Lai Hing Chiu, Dominic and Madam Lim Ghee
will not offer themselves for re-election. It is also proposed that Ms. Cheong

Hooi Kheng will be appointed as an executive director of the Company.

The translation into Chinese language of this notice is for reference only. In

case of any inconsistency, the English version shall prevail.
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